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COUNTY OF KAUAIPLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF SUBDIVISION COMMETTEE TELECONFERENCE AGENDA

Tuesday, September 8, 2020
8:30 a.m. or shortly thereafter

Microsoft Teams Audio: +1 469-848-0234, Conference ID: 112 307 510#

The meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams conferencing only. Members of the public are
invited to join this meeting by calling the number above with the conference ID
information. You may testify during the video conference or submit written testimony in
advance of the meeting via e-mail or mail. To avoid excessive noise/feedback, please mute
your microphone except to testify.

0w p

=

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Subdivision Committee

1. Minutes of Meeting on June 9, 2020

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT The Planning Commission will accept written
testimony for any agenda item herein. Written testimony indicating your 1) name, and if
applicable, your position/title and organization you are representing, and 2) the agenda item
that you are providing comment on, may be submitted in writing to
planningdepartment@kauai.gov or mailed to the County of Kauai Planning Department,
4444 Rice Street, Suite 473, Lihue, Hawaii 96766. Written testimony received by the
Planning Department before 8:30 a.m. on Monday, September 7, 2020, will be distributed
to all Planning Commissioners prior to the meeting, Written testimony received after 8:30
a.m. on Monday, September 7, 2020, will be summarized by the Clerk of the Commission
during the meeting and added to the record thereafter.

GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS




L NEW BUSINESS (For Action)

l.

2.

Tentative Subdivision Map Approval

a.

Subdivision Application No. S-2021-11
(Kukui‘ula Development Co.)
Proposed 14-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 2-6-019:048

Kukui‘ula, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

Final Subdivision Map Approval

a.

Subdivision Application No. 8-2018-15
(Kilauea Ohana Plateau, LLC.)
Proposed 10-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 5-2-005:023

Kilauea, Kaua'i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter,

Subdivision Application No. S-2019-15

(Matthew Nelson/Stephanie & Katherine Skow)
Proposed 2-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 4-7-006:019

Keidlia, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

Subdivision Application No. S-2019-19
(Kukui‘ula Development Co.)
Proposed 8-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 2-6-022:019, 021
Kukui‘ula, Kaua“‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

Subdivision Application No. S-2020-2
(Kukui‘ula Development Co.)
Proposed 13-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 2-6-022:020

Kukui‘ula, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

Kauai Planning Commission Subdivision Committee Agenda

September 8, 2020




L. NEW BUSINESS (For Action) (Cont’d)

3. Tentative Subdivision Extension Request

a. Subdivision Application No. S-2018-12
(AOAO Kulana Condominium)
Proposed 2-lot Subdivision
TMKSs: (4) 4-4-003:089
Kapa‘a, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

b. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-3
(McBryde Sugar Co., LLC./Sunset Strip Properties, LL.C.)
2-lot Subdivision
TMKs: (4) 2-4-007:002, 020
Kalaheo, Kaua‘i
Proposed 5-lot Boundary Adjustment

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

c. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-8
(Stephanie Fernandes)
TMK: (4) 4-2-005:044
Po‘ipii, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

d. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-16
(Robert S./Kerrilyn R.V. Barros)
TMKs: (4) 2-5-008:005
Lawa‘i, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

J. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF YOU NEED AN AUXILIARY AID/SERVICE, OTHER ACCOMMODATION DUE
TO A DISBILITY, OR AN INTERPRETER FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING PERSONS,
PLEASE CONTACT THE OFFICE OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS AT (808) 241-4917 OR
ASEGRETI@KAUAILGOV AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. REQUESTS MADE AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE WILL ALLOW ADEQUATE TIME TO FULFILL YOUR REQUEST. UPON
REQUEST, THIS NOTICE IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATE FORMATS SUCH AS LARGE
PRINT, BRAILLE, OR ELECTRONIC COPY.

Kauai Planning Commission Subdivision Committee Agenda
September §, 2020



KAUA‘I PLANNING COMMISSION
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE MEETING
June 9, 2020

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission Subdivision Committee of the County of
Kaua‘i was called to order at 8:30 a.m., Microsoft Teleconference. The following
Commissioners were present:

Mr. Roy Ho
Ms. Donna Apisa
Mr. Francis DeGracia

Absent and Excused:

The following staff members were present: Planning Department Director Kaaina Hull —

Planning Deputy Director Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa, Dale Cua, and Planning Commission

Secretary Leslie Takasaki; Office of the County Attorney — Deputy County Attorney Matthew

Bracken; Office of Boards and Commissions — Commission Support Clerk Arleen Kuwamura.
Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued:

CALL TO ORDER

Subdivision Committee Chair Ho: Called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

ROLL CALL
Chair Ho: Mr. Hull will you start us off with our roll, please.

Planning Director Mr. Kaaina Hull: Good morning members of the Subdivision Committee.
First order of business is Roll call. Commissioner Apisa.

Ms. Apisa: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGarcia.
Mr. DeGracia: Here

Mr. Hull: Chair Ho.

Chair Ho: Here

Mr. Hull: Chair Ho, you have a quorum. 3 Present.



APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Hull: The next order of business is the Approval of the Agenda. The Department does not
have any recommended changes to the agenda at this time.

Chair Ho: I need a motion please.
Mr. DeGracia: I move to approve the agenda.
Ms. Apisa: Seconded.

Chair Ho: The motion before us is to approval the agenda. All in favor? Aye (Unanimous voice
vote) Motion approved. Motion carries 3:0.

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Subdivision Committee

Mr. Hull: Next agenda Item, we have no Minutes.

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD (None)

Mr. Hull: There is no Receipt of Items for the Record.

HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Hull: Hearings and Public Comments. We did not receive any written testimony and
looking at the participants, nobody has called in to participate in this meeting. Sorry, I should
say, no members of the public have called in to participate in this meeting. So, we can move on
to—

Chair Ho: Kaaina. One more thing, as we proceed in this; it used to be if one of the
Commission members would want speak with either you, the attorney or someone on the
Commission, they would ask for a recess and then have their discussion. How would we do this
in this format now? If I wanted to speak to the attorney privately, yourself, or one of the
Commission members? Do you want to think about it?

Mr. Hull: Really, I am going to be careful because our County Attorney may jump in here. I
would say, Chair Ho, that if you have any thing you would like to discuss with us ahead of time.
It is probably best to have that side bar discussion with us ahead of time. Technically, once we
are in the meeting to preserve the record and in the interest of the Sunshine Law, although, it has
been waived. It is best to keep everything on the record and in the meeting. If you want to have
a side bar discussion about issues and preparing for it, definitely giving us a call or we can call
you ahead of the meeting to talk things through.



Ms. Apisa: Sounds reasonable.

Chair Ho: Thank you.

GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

Mr. Hull: Moving on. We have no G, General Business Matters.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action)

Mr. Hull: We have no H, Unfinished Business.

NEW BUSINESS (For Action)

Tentative Subdivision Map Approval.

Subdivision Application No. S-2020-07 State of Hawaii,
DLNR — Forestry Division Proposed 2-lot Subdivision
TMK: (4) 1-8-008: 020 (Por.) Hanapepe, Kauai

Mr. Hull: Moving on to New Business Item 1., tentative Subdivision Map Approval -
Subdivision Application No. S-2020-07 State of Hawaii, DLNR — Forestry Division Proposed 2-lot
Subdivision TMK: (4) 1-8-008: 020 (Por.) Hanapepe, Kauai and I will turn it over to Dale for the
Subdivision Report.

Mr. Cua read the Subdivision Report for the record (on file with the Planning
Department).

Staff Planner Mr. Dale Cua: Commissioners, the Department has received all the agency
requirements and we have incorporated them into the subdivision report. As a result, we are
recommending tentative subdivision approval of this application.

Chair Ho: Are there any questions for Mr. Cua, Commissioners?
Ms. Apisa: Ihave no questions.
Chair Ho: If there will be no questions, I entertain a motion, please.

Ms. Apisa: I move to approve Subdivision Application No. S-2020-07, State of Hawaii, DLNR-
Forestry Division.

Mr. DeGracia: I second.

Chair Ho: The motion before us is to approve Application No. S-2020-07, for State of Hawaii,
DLNR-Forestry Division. All in favor? Aye (Unanimous voice vote) Motion carries 3:0.



Ms. Apisa: Aye.

Chair Ho: Any one opposed?

Mr. DeGracia: Aye.

Ms. Apisa: Opposed?

Chair Ho: Mr. Hull can I call upon you to take the roll call vote, please?

Mr. Hull: Sure, Chair. The motion is to approve tentative subdivision application N0. S-2020-
07. Commissioner Apisa.

Ms. Apisa: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGracia.

Mr. DeGracia: Aye.

Chair Ho: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Chair. Motion Passes 3:0.

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Hull: And with that, we have no further subdivision items. That was a long one folks.
Chair Ho: We are approaching records here. I will ask for a motion to adjourn.

Ms. Apisa: I move to adjourn.

Mr. DeGracia: Seconded.

Chair Ho: Motion before us is to Adjourn. All in favor? Aye. (Unanimous voice vote) Motion

carries 3:0. We are adjourned.

Subdivision Committee Chair Ho: adjourned the meeting at 8:37 a.m.



Respectfully submitted by:

Arleen Kuwamura
Commission Support Clerk

( ) Approved as circulated (add date of meeting approval).

( ) Approved as amended. See minutes of meeting
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PRELIMINARY
SUBDIVISION OF LOT 1B-A

INTO LOTS 1B—A—1 AND 18—A-2
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KEALIA, KAWAIHAU, KAUA)L HAWAI
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Ownars: Matihew O. Nelson, Stephonie L Skow,

and Katharine Loulse Skow
Date: February 8, 2018
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KUKUI'ULA PARCEL G SUBDIVISION

CONSOLIDATION OF

LOF U OF XUKUT'U DIVISION, PHASE 1
AND LOT 13 OF KUKUI'ULA PARCEL F SUBDIVISION
AND RESUBDIVISION OF SAID CONSOLIDATION INTO

LOTS | TO 8, INCLUSIVE,

AND DESIGNATION OF EASEMENTS, AU-1, U-1 AND W-1

AND DESIGNATION OF RESTRICTION OF VEHICULAR
ACCESS RIGHTS AFFECTING LOTS 5, 6 AND 8

BEING ALL OF LAND COMMISSION AWARD 3028, AFANA 1 T0 EARLEMAEULE
AND PORTIONS OF ROYAL PATENT £714, LIND COMMISSION AWARD 7714-B,
APANA 2 TG M. EEKUAINA NO M. EEKUANAOA AND
ROYAL PATENT 4512, MAEELX AWARD 43 F0 1Y, KANEHOA
SFTUATED AS ETLOA (MAKAL) AND LAWAL
KULOA, EONA, EAUAL HAWAL
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SUBJECT TO CHANGE
COUNTY OF KAUA'I
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

TO: Subdivision Committee, Planning Commission
SUBJECT: Extension Request

PURPOSE: File Final Subdivision Maps
D Complete Subdivision Improvements

D Other:

Subdiv. Application No. Applicant(s)
S-2018-12 AOAO Kulana Condominium
Location: | Kapa‘a Tax Map Key: | (4) 4-4-003:089
Extension Request No. (1%, 2", etc.) Tentative Approval Granted On: | Previous Ext. Expired On:
2nd May 22, 2018 May 22, 2020

Subdivision Bonded: |:| Yes No Deadline to Complete Improvements: Not Applicable

APPLICANT’S REASONS: Additional time is being requested to comply with the conditions/requirements
of tentative approval. The Applicant is currently with the various reviewing agencies in resolving the required
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision.

EVALUATION Please refer to next page

RECOMMENDATION: Please refer to next page...

A -
GolE NG e o s

Staff Planner ! Date
[v]Approved and Recommended [ ]Denied
to Planning Commission
Comments:
)M efufe
ﬁlanning Director " Date

I.%2.0a.1.

SEP 0 8 2020



COUNTY OF KAUA‘I
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Extenston requests are primarily processed for the purpose of continuing a tentative approval for
a subdivision application. An extension approval allows an applicant additional time to comply
with the requirements in order to obtain final subdivision approval.

In determining whether additional time should be granted, an evaluation is made of the project’s
progress as well as compliance with the requirements of tentative approval. The evaluation is
primarily based on determining whether the applicant is progressively working towards
obtaining final subdivision approval with the various reviewing agencies. The tentative
approval conditions are then re-evaluated to determine whether the conditions/requirements are
adequate to address the impacts of the proposed development in consideration of the time that
has lapsed.

Pending evaluation of an extension request, one of the following can occur:
1. The extension is approved without changes to the tentative approval requirements;

2. The extension is approved with modified time frames but no modifications or
additions to the tentative approval requirements;

3. The extension is approved with modifications and/or additions to the requirements;
and

4. The extension is denied.

FINDINGS/BACKGROUND:

The proposed development involves a subdivision of a parcel into two (2) lots. The property is
zoned Agriculture (A) District. This application was granted tentative approval by the Planning
Commission on May 22, 2018 and this is the Applicant’s second extension request of the
tentative approval. The previous extension was granted to May 22, 2020.

The subject property is located southern side of Hauiki Road in the Kapa‘a Homesteads (refer to
attached map). The total area involved is approximately 1 acre and the surrounding parcels are
situated with the State Agricultural Land Use District that have been developed as residences.

PROGRESS OF THE SUBDIVISION:

In considering the extension request, it should be noted that the Applicant has been working to
comply with all requirements of tentative approval. As represented, the Applicant is working

$-2018-12: Sub Extension (270}
AOAQ Kulona Condo
08.19.2020



to resolve the requirements related to the subdivision, more particularly, the requirements
imposed by both the COK Departments of Water (DOW) and Public Works (DPW) . Since it is
uncertain as to when the Applicant will comply with the requirements of Tentative Approval.
another time extension is being requested.

Based on these circumstances, the Applicant’s reasons are justifiable and no problems are
foreseen in granting the extension request. The Departments of Public Works and Water have no

objections to the request.

Additionally, the Applicant should demonstrate further progress with the subdivision within one
(1) year from the approval of this extension request. As such, the Applicant shall be made aware
that in further considering extension requests involving the proposed development, the Applicant
shall continue to submit to the Planning Department an updated status report on the subdivision
with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval requirements. The
status report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60) days prior to
the expiration date in order to allow sufficient time to evaluate whether progress have been made
and conditions satisfied.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that an extension until MAY 22, 2021 be granted to obtain final subdivision
approval. However, the Applicant is made aware that an updated status report on the subdivision
with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval requirements shall be
submitted to the Planning Department for review for further extensions requests. The status
report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60) days prior to the
expiration date.

5-2018-12; Suk Extension (2M0}
ACAQC Kulano Condo
08.19.2020
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COUNTY OF KAUA"I
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

L

wubkCT_TO CHANGE

»

TO: Subdivision Committee, Planning Commission
SUBJECT: [Extension Request

PURPOSE: File Final Subdivision Maps
D Complete Subdivision Improvements

D Other:

Subdiv. Application No. Applicant(s)
S-2019-3 McBryde Sugar Co., LLC./Sunset Strip Properties, LLC.
Location: | Kalaheo Tax Map Key: | (4) 2-4-007:002, 020
Extension Request No. (1%, 2" etc.) Tentative Approval Granted On: | Previous Ext. Expired On:
[st November 18,2018 Not Applicable

Subdivision Bonded: \:] Yes No Deadline to Complete Improvements: Not Applicable

APPLICANT’S REASONS: Additional time is being requested to comply with the conditions/requirements

of tentative approval. The Applicant is currently with the various reviewing agencies in resolving the required
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision.

refer to next page...

EVALUATION: Please

RECOMMENDATION: Please refer to next page...

@WW 19 Aug 2020

Staff Plannd Date

[v']Approved and Recommended [ ]Denied
to Planning Commission

Comments:

% '“3/13!_/%*3

Planning Director © Date

V: 2019 Master Files  Regulatory Subdivisions $-2019-3 Sub extension Report-1 8.19.20 $-2019-3McBryde-Sunset Sirip Properties_Ext.docx ! .z b‘ i
®
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COUNTY OF KAUA‘I
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Extension requests are primarily processed for the purpose of continuing a tentative approval for
a subdivision application. An extension approval allows an applicant additional time to comply
with the requirements in order to obtain final subdivision approval.

In determining whether additional time should be granted, an evaluation is made of the project’s
progress as well as compliance with the requirements of tentative approval. The evaluation is
primarily based on determining whether the applicant is progressively working towards
obtaining final subdivision approval with the various reviewing agencies. The tentative
approval conditions are then re-evaluated to determine whether the conditions/requirements are
adequate to address the impacts of the proposed development in consideration of the time that
has lapsed.

Pending evaluation of an extension request, one of the following can occur:
1. The extension is approved without changes to the tentative approval requirements;

2. The extension is approved with modified time frames but no modifications or
additions to the tentative approval requirements;

3. The extension is approved with modifications and/or additions to the requirements;
and

4. The extension is denied.

FINDINGS/BACKGRQUND:

The proposed subdivision involves a boundary adjustment that consolidates sixteen (16} lots of
the Brydeswood Phase II Subdivision and resubdivides into two (2) lots within the Agriculture
(A)Open (O) zoning districts. This application was granted tentative approval by the Planning
Commission on November 18, 2018 and the Applicant’s request is the first extension of the
tentative approval,

The subject property is located along the mauka side of Kaumuali‘i Highway in Kalaheo and
adjacent to the Olu Pua Gardens site (refer to attached map). The total area involved is
approximately 198.844 acres and the surrounding parcels are undeveloped fallow agriculture
lands. The nearest residential development is approximately 1 mile east of the project site

PROGRESS OF THE SUBDIVISION:

[n considering the extension request, it should be noted that the Applicant has a lot of progress

$-2019-3; Sub Extension (1°1)
MCBRYDE SUGAR CO./SUNSET STRIP PROPERTIES
08.19.2020




with the development and has already submitted Final Subdivision maps for agency review. As
represented, the Applicant has been trying to comply with the requirements of tentative approval.

The Applicant is still working to resolve the required infrastructure improvements associated
with this application and determining the applicable requirements of the COK Departments of
Water (DOW) and Public Works (DPW) . Since it is uncertain as to when the Applicant will be
in compliance with the requirements of Tentative Approval, another time extension is being
requested.

Based on the foregoing circumstances, the Applicant’s reasons are justifiable and no problems
are foreseen in granting the extension request. The Departments of Public Works and Water
have no objections to the request.

Additionally, the Applicant should demonstrate further progress with the subdivision within one
(1) year from the approval of this extension request. As such, the Applicant shall be made aware
that in further considering extension requests involving the proposed development, the Applicant
shall continue to submit to the Planning Department an updated status report on the subdivision
with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval requirements. The
status report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60) days prior to
the expiration date in order to allow sufficient time to evaluate whether progress have been made
and conditions satisfied.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that an extension until NOVEMBER 18, 2021 be granted to obtain final
subdivision approval. However, the Applicant is made aware that an updated status report on the
subdivision with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval
requirements shall be submitted to the Planning Department for review for further extensions
requests. The status report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration date.

$-2019-3; Sub Extension (1°7)
MCBRYDE SUGAR CO./SUNSET STRIP PROFERTIES
08.19.2020



KODANI & ASSOCIATES ENGINEERS, LLC

April 14, 2020 o
RE: BRYDESWOOD SUBD. 5-2019-3

Mr. Chance Bukoski
Planning Department

County of Kauai

Dear Mr. Bukoski:

Please accept this letter as our Request for an Extension of Time for the subject project. Background
history - the subject project was granted Tentative Approval (TA) on November 18, 2018. In Mid-
October of 2019, we submitted a (pre)FINAL Subdivision Map for review and FINAL Approval by the
Planning Commission.

However, prior to obtaining FINAL approval, a revised subdivision map was submitted for review and
approval — in summary, the revised subdivision map involved the consolidation of Lot 13 with Lot 14,
This revision resulted in revised conditions by the Department of Water {DOW). We have subsequentiy
received approval from the DOW to their revised conditions.

Currently, it's my understanding that a new set of the {pre}Final Subdivision Map has been submitted to
the County for FINAL Subdivision Approval. That said, we humbly request that an extension of time be
granted for the subject subdivision.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office.

Very truly yours,

AL )
&///8;!— Ty Ix' t;“\ Z

Clyde T. Kodani

31268 AKAHI STREET, LIHUE, KAUA'I, HAWAI'| 96766 EMAIL: KODANI@KODANI.COM
FH: 808.245.8591 Fax: 808.246.6368
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COUNTY OF KAUA‘I
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SUBJECT_TO CHANGE

TO: Subdivision Committee, Planning Commission
SUBJECT: Extension Request

PURPOSE: File Final Subdivision Maps
[___l Complete Subdivision Improvements

D Other:

Subdiv. Application No. Applicant(s)
S-2019-8 Stephanie Fernandes
Location: | Wailua Homesteads Tax Map Key: | (4) 4-2-005:044
Extension Request No. (1%, 2™ etc.) Tentative Approval Granted On: | Previous Ext. Expired On:
Ist January 22, 2019 Not Applicable

Subdivision Bonded: |:| Yes No Deadline to Complete Improvements: Not Applicable

APPLICANT’S REASONS: Additional time is being requested to comply with the conditions/requirements
of tentative approval. The Applicant is currently with the various reviewing agencies in resolving the required
infrastructure improvements tor the subdivision.

¥:\2019 Moster Files\Regulatory!Subdivisions}5-2019-8\ Sub Extension\Report-1 §.19.20 5-2019-8Fernandes _Ext.docx . I. ”. c - 1 .
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COUNTY OF KAUA‘L
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Extension requests are primarily processed for the purpose of continuing a tentative approval for
a subdivision application. An extension approval allows an applicant additional time to comply
with the requirements in order to obtain final subdivision approval.

In determining whether additional time should be granted, an evaluation is made of the project’s
progress as well as compliance with the requirements of tentative approval. The evaluation is
primarily based on determining whether the applicant is progressively working towards
obtaining final subdivision approval with the various reviewing agencies. The tentative
approval conditions are then re-evaluated to determine whether the conditions/requirements are
adequate to address the impacts of the proposed development in consideration of the time that
has lapsed.

Pending evaluation of an extension request, one of the following can occur:
1. The extension is approved without changes to the tentative approval requirements;

2. The extension is approved with modified time frames but no modifications or
additions to the tentative approval requirements;

3. The extension is approved with modifications and/or additions to the requirements;
and

4. The extension is denied.

FINDINGS/BACKGROUND:

The proposed development involves a subdivision of a parcel into five (5) lots in the Wailua
Homesteads arca. This application was granted tentative approval by the Planning Commission
on January 22, 2019 and the Applicant’s request is the first extension of the tentative approval.

The subject property is situated in close proximity to the Kuamo‘o Road/Kamalu Road
intersection in Wailua Homesteads (refer to attached map). The total area involved is
approximately 10.818 acres and the surrounding parcels are developed with single-family
residences. '

PROGRESS OF THE SUBDIVISION:

In considering the extension request, it should be noted that the Applicant has made some
progress in addressing the requirements of the subdivision. As represented, they are currently

§-2019-8; Sub Extension {137)
FERNANDES
08.19.2020



resolving the housing requirements of the County Housing Agency as well as the infrastructure
improvements with the COK Departments of Water (DOW)} and Public Works (DPW). Since it
is uncertain as to when the Applicant will be in compliance with the requirements of Tentative
Approval, another time extension is being requested.

Based on the foregoing circumstances, the Applicant’s reasons are justifiable and no problems
are foreseen in granting the extension request. The Departments of Public Works and Water
have no objections to the request.

Additionally, the Applicant should demonstrate further progress with the subdivision within one
(1) year from the approval of this extension request. As such, the Applicant shall be made aware
that in further considering extension requests involving the proposed development, the Applicant
shall continue to submit to the Planning Department an updated status report on the subdivision
with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval requirements. The
status report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60) days prior to
the expiration date in order to allow sufficient time to evaluate whether progress have been made
and conditions satisfied.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that an extension until JANUARY 22, 2021 be granted to obtain final
subdivision approval. However, the Applicant is made aware that an updated status report on the
subdivision with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval
requirements shall be submitted to the Planning Department for review for further extensions
requests. The status report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration date.

5-2019-8; Sup Extension (137
FERNANDES
08.19.2020
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May 15, 2020

oy
s

Mr. Ka'aina Hull, Planning Director
Planning Depariment

County of Kauai

4444 Rice Street, Suite 473

Lihue, HI 96766

Attn: Mr. Dale Cua

RE: Fernandes et. al. Subdivision (S-2019-8)
TMK: 4-2.05:44
Wailua Homesteads, Kauai, Hawali
KAE17-1705

Gentlemen:

: Please accept this letfer as our request for an extension for the subject subdivision. We had hoped fo
- complete the subdivision last year however, discussions regarding the County Housing Agency
. requirements are still ongoing. In addition, with the change of the Commissioner for this family
© subdivision, and the recent Coronavirus Pandemic, scheduling of the subject subdivision has been thrown
into a flux. '

We ask for your understanding and consideration to our request for an extension.

Should you have any guestions, please feel free to contact our office.

Very truly yours,
'
O%lt@ kodaus |
Clyde T. Kodani
President and CEO

CTK:sds

c: Jonathan Chun, Belles Graham LLP

3126 AKAHI STREET, LLIHUE, KAUA'I, HAWAI'I 96768 EMAIL: KODANI@KODANI.COM
PH: 808.245.9591 FAX: 808.246.6368



COUNTY OF KAUA‘I

PLANNING DEPARTMENT TV
SUBTECT 10 CHANGE

TO: Subdivision Committee, Planning Commission
SUBJECT: Extension Request

PURPOSE: File Final Subdivision Maps
D Complete Subdivision Improvements

D Other:

Subdiv. Application No. Applicant(s)
S-2019-16 Robert S./Kerrilyn R.V. Barros
Location: | Wailua Homesteads Tax Map Key: | (4) 2-5-008:005
Extension Request No. (1%, 2", etc.) Tentative Approval Granted On: | Previous Ext. Expired On:
[st May 28, 2019 Not Applicable

Subdivision Bonded: D Yes No Deadline to Complete Improvements: Not Applicable

APPLICANT’S REASONS: Additional time is being requested to comply with the conditions/requirements
of tentative approval. The Applicant is currently with the various reviewing agencies in resolving the required
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision.

EVALUATION: Please refer to next page...

RECOMMENDATION: Please refer to next page...

_@1 19 Aug 2020

Staff Planner

[v']Approved and Recommended [ ]Denied
to Planning Commission

Comments:

“Plannin g Diredc:)}}‘ " Date

V: 2019 Master Files' Regulatory' Subdivisions' 5-2019-16' Sub Extension' Report-1 8.19.20 5-2019-16Barros_Ext.docx i . Q 4 i
° L) 3
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COUNTY OF KAUA‘I
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Extension requests are primarily processed for the purpose of continuing a tentative approval for
a subdivision application. An extension approval allows an applicant additional time to comply
with the requirements in order to obtain final subdivision approval.

In determining whether additional time should be granted, an evaluation is made of the project’s
progress as well as compliance with the requirements of tentative approval. The evaluation is
primarily based on determining whether the applicant is progressively working towards
obtaining final subdivision approval with the various reviewing agencies. The tentative
approval conditions are then re-evaluated to determine whether the conditions/requirements are
adequate to address the impacts of the proposed development in consideration of the time that
has lapsed.

Pending evaluation of an extension request, one of the following can occur:
1. The extension is approved without changes to the tentative approval requirements;

2. The extension is approved with modified time frames but no modifications or
additions to the tentative approval requirements;

3. The extension is approved with modifications and/or additions to the requirements;
and

4. The extension is denied.

FINDINGS/BACKGROUND:

The proposed development involves a subdivision of a parcel into two (2) in the Lawa'i area.
This application was granted tentative approval by the Planning Commission on May 28, 2019
and the Applicant’s request is the first extension of the tentative approval.

The subject property is immediately adjacent to the Lawa‘i Ridge Residential Subdivision and
approximately 1,000 feet east of the Koloa Road/Hailima Road intersection in Lawa‘i (refer to
attached map). The total area involved is approximately 0.779 acre and the surrounding parcels
are developed with single-family residences.

PROGRESS OF THE SUBDIVISION:

In considering the extension request, it should be noted that the Applicant has made some
progress in addressing the requirements of the subdivision. As represented, they are currently

$-2019-16; Sub Extension {157)
BARROS
08.19.2020



resolving the housing requirements of the State Department of Health (DOH) and COK
Department ot Water (DOW). It is uncertain as to when the Applicant will comply with the
requirements of Tentative Approval, therefore another time extension is being requested.

Based on the foregoing circumstances, the Applicant’s reasons are justifiable and no problems
are foreseen in granting the extension request. The Departments of Public Works and Water
have no objections to the request.

Additionally, the Applicant should demonstrate further progress with the subdivision within one
(1) year trom the approval of this extension request. As such, the Applicant shall be made aware
that in further considering extension requests involving the proposed development, the Applicant
shall continue to submit to the Planning Department an updated status report on the subdivision
with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval requirements. The
status report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60) days prior to
the expiration date in order to allow sufficient time to evaluate whether progress have been made
and conditions satisfied.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that an extension until MAY 28, 2021 be granted to obtain final subdivision
approval. However, the Applicant is made aware that an updated status report on the subdivision
with a detailed time chronology on the progress of the tentative approval requirements shall be
submitted to the Planning Department for review for further extensions requests. The status
report shall be submitted to the Planning Department no later than sixty (60) days prior to the
expiration date.

5-2019-16; Sub Extension {1°7)
BARRQOS
08.19.2020
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ESAKI SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC

1610 HALEUKANA STREET - LIHUE, KAUA'l, HAWAI'l 96766
(808) 246-0625 ESM@ESAKIMAP.COM

May 22, 2020

Mr. Ka'aina S. Hull

Director of Planning

County of Kauai

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473
Lihue, HI 96766

RE:  SUBDIVISION EXTENSION REQUEST
5-2019-16, ROBERT S. & KERRILYN R. V. BARROS
T.M.K. (4) 2-5-08: 05
LAWA'I, KOLOA, KAUA'l, HAWAI'|

Dear Mr. Hulfl,

The subject subdivision received TENTATIVE APPROVAL by the Planning Commission at their
meeting held on May 28, 2019.

The applicant is currently working on the Department of Health (DOH) requirements and
requests more time to complete,

We respectfully request an extension in time of 1 year to file final subdivision map.

Thank you for your consideration,

Dennis M. Esaki

Agent Lo Agg L et



Glenda Nogami Streufert Members:

Chair Melvin Chiba
T INETT Helen Cox
R E C ! \ pe r-) Francis DeGracia
Donna Apisa Roy Ho
Vice Chair Lori Otsuka

COUNTY OPK AFATPIANKING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE AGENDA

Tuesday; September 8, 2020
9:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter

Microsoft Teams Audio: +1 469-848-0234, Conference ID: 602 169 501#

The meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams conferencing only. Members of the public are
invited to join this meeting by calling the number above with the conference ID
information. You may testify during the video conference or submit written testimony in
advance of the meeting via e-mail or mail. To avoid excessive noise/feedback, please mute
your microphone except to testify.

A. CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

B
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
D

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Planning Commission

1. Meeting of June 9, 2020

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

=2

F. HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT The Planning Commission will accept written
testimony for any agenda item herein. Written testimony indicating your 1) name, and if
applicable, your position/title and organization you are representing, and 2) the agenda
item that you are providing comment on, may be submitted in writing to
planningdepartment@kauai.gov or mailed to the County of Kauai Planning Department,
4444 Rice Street, Suite 473, Lihue, Hawaii 96766. Written testimony received by the
Planning Department before 9:00 a.m. on Monday, September 7, 2020, will be distributed
to Planning Commissioners prior to the meeting. Written testimony received after 9:00
a.m. on Monday, September 7, 2020, will be summarized by the Clerk of the Commission
during the meeting and added to the record thereafter.

1. Continued Agency Hearing

2. New Agency Hearing

a. Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2020-7, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-
IV-2020-16, and Use Permit U-2020-13 to allow construction of a new craft brewery
building and associated site improvements including on-site parking, driveway,
pedestrian bridge, private wastewater system, and operation of food trucks, AND
Amendments to Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-88-4, Use Permit U-
88-25, Variance Permit V-88-6, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-88-30, as amended, and
SMA(U)-2006-1, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2006-1, and Class IV Zoning
Permit Z-IV-2006-1 to accommodate parking for the proposed development, allow




F. HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT (Cont’d)

2. New Agency Hearing (Cont’d)
a. Hanalei Commercial Company, Inc./Na Pali Brewing Company, LLC. (Cont’d)

increased land coverage, and reduction in the number of permitted Employee Housing
within the eastern portion of Lot 17, involving parcels situated on the mauka side of
Kuhio Highway in Hanalei Town, approx. 550 fi. east of the Kuhio Highway/Aku
Road intersection, immediately adjacent to property identified as 5-5091 Kuhio
Highway, Tax Map Keys: (4) 5-5-009:008 & 009, and containing a total area of
4.165 acres = Hanalei Commercial Company, Inc./Na Pali Brewing Company, LLC.
Director’s Report,| $1DR,|and attachments to [S2DR]received by Commission Clerk

: [0 Agenda teceived and hearing deferred 8/11/20; S3DR and S4DR

received by Commission Clerk 8/18/20.]

3. Continued Public Hearing

4. New Public Hearing
5 All remaining public testimony pursuant to HRS 92 (Sunshine Law)
G. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Status Reports
2. Director’s Report for Project Scheduled for Agency Hearing.

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION

| & GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

. Withdrawal of Petition to Appeal Decision of the Planning Director in the Matter of the
Application of Blaine Perrella appealing zoning classification Determination and
Allowable Building Area Determination for Unit B of Kukuna Seaside Estates on land
located in Aliomanu, Kawaihau, Puna, Kauai, Hawaii Tax Map Key No. (4) 4-9-
005:015 0002.

2. Applicant’s Request to Amend Condition No. 16 of Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-2012-
18, Use Permit U-2012-14, and Special Permit SP-2012-38 to extend the hours of
operation involving the recreational shooting facility = Benjamin Ellsworth (Kauai Eco
Sporting Clays, LLC.).

a. Director’s Report pertaining to this matter.

J. COMMUNICATION (For Action)

1. Housing Director Adam Roversi to provide a briefing on Bill No. 2774 and matters
related to amendments to the County of Kauai’s Housing Policy.
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J. COMMUNICATION (For Action) (Cont’d)

2. lan Jung, Esq., to provide a briefing on Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2020 to develop a
mixed use commercial/multi-family residential project containing spaces for retail,
office, and restaurant operations, 62 residential units and associated improvements on a
parcel situated within the Lihue Town Core area on the corner of Rice Street and Umi
Street, further identified as 3016 Umi Street, Tax Map Key: 3-6-003:010, and containing
a total area of 1.5313 acres.

K. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Subdivision Subdivision Action matters listed in the Subdivision Committee Agenda
(attached)

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action)

M. NEW BUSINESS

1. For Action — See Agenda F for Project Descriptions

N. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Topics for Future Meetings

2. The following regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held at 9:00
a.m., or shortly thereafter on October 13, 2020. The Planning Commission anticipates
meeting via teleconference, but will announce its intended meeting method via an agenda
electronically posted at least six days prior to the meeting date.

0. ADJOURNMENT

EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Commission may go into an executive session on an agenda item
for one of the permitted purposes listed in Section 92-5(a) Hawaii Revised Statutes (“H.R.S.”),
without noticing the executive session on the agenda where the executive session was not
anticipated in advance. HRS Section 92-7(a). The executive session may only be held, however,
upon an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members present, which must also be the majority
of the members to which the board is entitled. HRS Section 92-4. The reason for holding the
executive session shall be publicly announced.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED AN AUXILIARY AID/SERVICE, OTHER ACCOMMODATION DUE
TO A DISBILITY, OR AN INTERPRETER FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING PERSONS,
PLEASE CONTACT THE OFFICE OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS AT (808) 241-4917 OR
ASEGRETI@KAUALGOV AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. REQUESTS MADE AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE WILL ALLOW ADEQUATE TIME TO FULFILL YOUR REQUEST.

UPON REQUEST, THIS NOTICE IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATE FORMATS SUCH AS
LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, OR ELECTRONIC COPY.

m
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Roy Ho
Chair

Member:
Francis DeGracia

Donna Apisa

Vice Chair

COUNTY OF KAUAI PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE TELECONFERENCE AGENDA

Tuesday, September 8, 2020
8:30 a.m. or shortly thereafter

Microsoft Teams Audio: +1 469-848-0234, Conference ID: 112 307 510#

The meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams conferencing only. Members of the public are
invited to join this meeting by calling the number above with the conference ID
information. You may testify during the video conference or submit written testimony in
advance of the meeting via e-mail or mail. To avoid excessive noise/feedback, please mute
your microphone except to testify.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Subdivision Committee

1. Minutes of Meeting on June 9, 2020

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT The Planning Commission will accept written
testimony for any agenda item herein. Written testimony indicating your 1) name, and if
applicable, your position/title and organization you are representing, and 2) the agenda
item that you are providing comment on, may be submitted in writing to
planningdepartment@kauai.gov or mailed to the County of Kauai Planning Department,
4444 Rice Street, Suite 473, Lihue, Hawaii 96766. Written testimony received by the
Planning Department before 8:30 a.m. on Monday, September 7, 2020, will be distributed
to all Planning Commissioners prior to the meeting. Written testimony received after 8:30
a.m. on Monday, September 7, 2020, will be summarized by the Clerk of the Commission
during the meeting and added to the record thereafter.

GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

m
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L NEW BUSINESS (For Action)

1. Tentative Subdivision Map Approval

a. Subdivision Application No. S-2021-11
(Kukui‘ula Development Co.)
Proposed 14-lot Subdivision
TMK: (4) 2-6-019:048
Kukui‘ula, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

2. Final Subdivision Map Approval

a. Subdivision Application No. S-2018-15
(Kilauea Ohana Plateau, LLC.)
Proposed 10-lot Subdivision
TMK: (4) 5-2-005:023
Kilauea, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

b. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-15
(Matthew Nelson/Stephanie & Katherine Skow)
Proposed 2-lot Subdivision
TMK: (4) 4-7-006:019
Kealia, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

c. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-19
(Kukui‘ula Development Co.)
Proposed 8-lot Subdivision
TMK: (4) 2-6-022:019, 021
Kukui‘ula, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

d. Subdivision Application No. S-2020-2
(Kukui‘ula Development Co.)
Proposed 13-lot Subdivision
TMK: (4) 2-6-022:020
Kukui‘ula, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

m
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L. NEW BUSINESS (For Action) (Cont’d)

3, Tentative Subdivision Extension Request

a. Subdivision Application No. S-2018-12
(AOAO Kulana Condominium)
Proposed 2-lot Subdivision
TMKSs: (4) 4-4-003:089
Kapa‘a, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

b. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-3
(McBryde Sugar Co., LLC./Sunset Strip Properties, LLC.)
2-lot Subdivision
TMKSs: (4) 2-4-007:002, 020
Kalaheo, Kaua‘i
Proposed 5-lot Boundary Adjustment

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.
c. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-8

(Stephanie Fernandes)

TMK: (4) 4-2-005:044

Po‘ipti, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.
d. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-16

(Robert S./Kerrilyn R.V. Barros)

TMKs: (4) 2-5-008:005

Lawa‘i, Kaua‘i

1) Subdivision Report pertaining to this matter.

J. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF YOU NEED AN AUXILIARY AID/SERVICE, OTHER ACCOMMODATION
DUE TO A DISBILITY, OR AN INTERPRETER FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING
PERSONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE OFFICE OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS AT (808)
241-4917 OR ASEGRETI@KAUAIL.GOV AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. REQUESTS MADE AS
EARLY AS POSSIBLE WILL ALLOW ADEQUATE TIME TO FULFILL YOUR
REQUEST. UPON REQUEST, THIS NOTICE IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATE
FORMATS SUCH AS LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, OR ELECTRONIC COPY.
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Pursuant to Section 8-27.8 (6) of the Kaua‘i County Code (1987), as amended, the following
shoreline setback determinations by the Director are disclosed for purposes of public notification.

September 08, 2020

SHORELINE SETBACK DETERMINATIONS

Application Name of Property 1.D. Location Reasons
No. Applicant(s) (Tax Map Key)
SSD-2021-6 | Kaua‘i Beach Resort |(4) 3-7-003:015 Lihue Repair Concrete
Association spalling on Bldg. 1,
3, 4, and pool Bldg..
SSD-2021-7 David Schindele (4) 2-8-017:026 0124 Koloa Storage and laundry
room conversion
SSD-2021-8 Robert and Andi (4) 5-5-004-040 Hanalei Covered Lana‘i
Ferguson addition, remodel,
and replace roofing
SSD-2021-9 | Three Coconuts, LLC | (4) 5-5-002:003 Hanalei Fence, hot tub
platform, and storage
shed
SSD-2021-10 | Stewart N. Husband | (4) 1-6-006:011 0001 Waimea | New Single Family
Dwelling
SSD-2021-11 Kaupu Kea, LLC (4) 5-1-004:015 Kilauea Demolition of Single
family dwelling

m
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KAUA‘I PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
June 09, 2020

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua‘i was called to order by
Chair Glenda Nogami Streufert at 9:04 a.m., - Microsoft Teams Audio +1 469-848-0234,
Conference ID: 566 733 423# The following Commissioners were present:

Ms. Glenda Nogami Streufert
Ms. Donna Apisa
Mr. Melvin Chiba
Ms. Helen CoX (Joined Meeting 9:38 a.m.)
Mr. Francis DeGracia
Mr. Roy Ho
Ms. Lori Otsuka

The following staff members were present: Planning Department — Director Kaaina Hull,
Deputy Director Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa, Myles Hironaka, Dale Cua, Marie Williams, and
Planning Commission Secretary Leslie Takasaki; Office of the County Attorney — Deputy
County Attorney Matthew Bracken; Office of Boards and Commissions — Administrator Ellen
Ching, Support Clerk Arleen Kuwamura

Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued:
CALL TO ORDER

Chair Nogami Streufert: Called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m.

ROLL CALL

Planning Director Mr. Kaaina Hull: Good morning, Commissioners. First order of business is
roll call. Commissioner Cox

Ms. Cox: Here
Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa.

Ms. Apisa: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ho.



Mr. Ho: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Chiba.
Mr. Chiba: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka.
Ms. Otsuka: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGracia.
Mr. DeGracia: Here.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Here

Mr. Hull: You have a quorum, Madame Chair. 7 present.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Before we go on with the Approval of Agenda. I would like to make
an announcement and acknowledge that Kaaina Hull, Director of the Planning Department. Has
received the Individual Achievement Award for Historic Preservation from the Historic Hawaii
Foundation. This is a very prestigious award, and to understand it better I have asked our
Deputy Planner and Attorney, Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa, to give us a little bit of information on
this, please, Jodi.

County Deputy Director of Planning Department Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa: Sure. Historic Hawaii
Foundation is a very renowned and reputable organization that is really at the forefront of all
Historic Preservation, especially, in the State. The Foundation has recognized our very own
Kaaina Hull, for the Individual Achievement Award for his leadership and planning and
preservation. If you visited Kaaina in his office, home, or spent enough time with him, you
would know that Kaaina has a passion for collecting antiques, which I think parallels his passion
for historic preservation. In July of 2015, he and his family went to Paris, and he returned home
(inaudible) his wife with two gramophones. He once explained that his fascination with these
objects he collects is rooted in his appreciation for the history, craftsmanship, and the utility of
these well used objects. I think, similarly, Kaaina has sought to honor significant and historic
properties and sites, and prioritizes their preservation as Planning Director. These same values
have shifted Kauai’s conversation on historic preservation to a necessary part of the Land Use
permitting process.

Recently, we have witnessed this passion in his leadership of the West Kauai Community Plan,
and the West Kauai Form-Based Code. His previous accomplishments has also included
reforming the Kauai Historic Preservation Commissions Rules and Regulations to formalize their
analysis and determinations, he led Kauai County’s efforts to preserve the Lihue Post Office, he
oversaw the listing of the Hanapepe Bridge on the Hawaii and the National registry of Historic
Places, he initiated Lihue’s one and only Tiptop Clock Tower, and promoted concepts like

“Place making” and “Urban Tacticalism” throughout Land Use at the County.



So we wanted to make sure this recognition was brought to the Commissions attention and ask
that you folks help us celebrate our very own Kaaina Hull.

Ms. Cox: Congratulations!

Chair Nogami Streufert: I have asked Commissioner Otsuka, to say a few words because she
was the one who brought it to our attention.

Ms. Otsuka: Aloha Kaaina. On behalf of the Planning Commission Chair Streufert, Vice Chair
Apisa, myself, and the other Commission members. We would like to congratulate you on this
well-deserved and prestigious award. With your continued passion and dedication for history
and preservation, you truly deserve this. It is an honor to know you, and I look forward to
continuing working with you and your team. Mahalo and Congratulations!

[Clapping and laughing]

Chair Nogami Streufert: I have been working with you for several years now and it is a pleasure
working with you. You know the work that your Department continues to do, cannot be
accomplished without leadership that is visionary and that is forward thinking and
compassionate. So I really appreciate that, and I look forward to working with you. Iknow that
all the Commissioners enjoy working with you. Thank you very much and congratulations! One
for the County and one for you. Thank you.

Mr. Hull: Thank you Commissioners. I am not one for accolades and awards, so I do not have
much to say. But it is definitely an honor. For me, it is an honor, but it reflects quite honestly,
the work that the Department as a whole (Inaudible). It starts with the Kauai Historic
Preservation Review Commission and the matters assigned to staff that Commission. Myles is
on the line with us right now, and he definitely was a huge part of in spinning up that
Commission with Ricky Tsuchiya, and now having Alex Wong and Marissa Valenciano really
guiding it, with the stewardship of both Marie and Jodi. So it really is a whole team effort and if
anything it recognizes our team. Thank you for the recognition.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It is great. It is both for the Department as well as for you, we
appreciate it and I think it is great that Kauai gets this kind of recognition. (Inaudible). Can we
have the Agenda, please?

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Hull: Madame Chair. The Department would have two requests for amendments to be

made to the agenda. We know that there was some interest in the Agenda Item F. 4. A., Zoning
Amendment ZA—

Chair Nogami Streufert: If you could call it. I am sorry, I should have asked the other
Commissioners, if anyone else wanted to say anything before we moved on to the agenda.
Okay, hearing none. Let us move on to the agenda.



Mr. Hull: As I was saying Madame Chair. The Department would request that Zoning
Amendment ZA-2020-16, this is concerning the definition of “Applicant” be moved to the top of
the agenda and -

Deputy Planning Director Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa: I am sorry to interject. I think we are having
some issues with recording. Arleen from Boards and Commissions has just notified us that we

need to take a quick pause so we can sort out the recording.

Mr. Hull: For the sake of keeping it official, Chair, you may want to state for the record, that we
are taking a 10-minute recess or S-minute recess.

Chair Nogami Streufert: We will take a 5-minute or 10-minute recess until we can get the
recording.

The Commission recessed this portion of the meeting at 9:08 a.m.
The Commission reconvened this portion of the meeting at 9:14 a.m.

Chair Nogami Streufert: The meeting back to order.

Mr. Hull: Coming out of recess. Madame Chair, again, the Department would recommend that
ZA-2020-16, be moved to the top of the agenda as the first Agenda Item in Hearings and Public
Comment. And the Department ask, that the Executive Session be moved to the end of the
agenda right before adjournment so that you folks could go into Executive Session at the end.

Ms. Apisa: I move to approve the agenda as amended.
Ms. Cox: I seconded.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It has been moved and seconded that we approve the agenda as
amended. Are there any discussion? All those in favor? Aye. (Unanimous voice vote). This
agenda has been approved. Motion carried. 7:0.

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Planning Commission

Mr. Hull: There are no Minutes for this meeting.

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD (None)

Mr. Hull: There are no Receipt of Items for the record.
HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Hull: For Item F., Hearings and Public Comment. The Planning Commission accepts
written testimony for agenda items. The Department has not received any written testimony for
any of the Agenda Items at this time. However, I recognize there are five individuals who have
called in to this meeting. If any of those members would like to orally testify at this time on any



agenda item, now would be your time to testify. Just please state your name for the record and I
will leave certain pause to those who would like to testify. Now would be you time.

Mr. John Freeman: (Inaudible) this is John Freeman.

Mr. Hull: Hi John. Yes, we can hear you fine. Did you want to testify?

Mr. Freeman: Thank you very much. We are both watching closed caption, so I was not sure on
how the connection I was. I did send in written testimony; did you not receive that for some
reason? It shows us sending from my side, but I did send in written testimony.

Mr. Hull: John, when did you send that in?

Ms. Apisa: Which—

Mr. Freeman: (Inaudible)—

Mr. Hull: John, what time did you send that testimony in?

Mr. Freeman: It was about 8:15 a.m. or 8:20 a.m., I am guessing.

Mr. Hull: Okay. The Commissioners will not receive that until after this meeting. Written
testimony needs to be submitted 24 hours in advance. We started the Subdivision Committee at
8:30 am. You can feel free to read that testimony on to the record if you like, but it also will be
transmitted to the Commissioners, post the meeting.

Mr. Freeman: Okay. Just give me a second here to pull it out, I do want to take a quick look at it
and give you some idea of what my concerns are. Basically, my written testimony, which I will
stand on, deals...and it is what Christian and I, both deal with this particular Amendment
redefining a couple of very vital terms within the CZO for the purpose of a clarification. My
concern is that I feel it obscures rather than clarifies the def...I am sorry—I believe that it
obscures rather than clarifies the definitions of those terms. It also, has the possibility of
allowing people to think that the requirement for applying for a permit has not only changed but
also, the requirement for being approved for a permit has changed. And that I do not see that as
being the case. I am not an attorney. (Inaudible) but that is not what I pulled out about. I pulled
up the requirement for applying is no longer requires a seventy-five percent, but that you would
still process the application in the same method as any other application, is that correct?

Mr. Hull: Correct.

Mr. Freeman: Okay. My concerns are about the definitive language about the changes, the
terminology. It looks like there is a lot of redactions done, no offense to anybody. But not
anything really added. So the terminology “Is always having full equitable and legal title and
land fee simple” I see that as being very problematic because equitable and legal title of one half
of one percent, would still be equitable and legal title, is that correct?



Mr. Hull: Well John. I would say, at this time, it is time for public testimony. If you want to
have a side conversation with myself or the Planner that is fine. But right now—

Mr. Freeman: Okay, so I will get away from the questions. I will go ahead and testify. I believe
that for example, one percent share of full and equitable legal title in land and fee simple, would
allow a person to apply for variance who only holds one percent of the fee simple title on the
property. If by full, you mean, hundred percent of the owners have to apply? I think that it
would be (inaudible) the Intermediate Court of Appeals decision, and it would be a threshold and
it would be impossible to meet in over fifty percent of the cases.

If you mean only those people that have equitable title, no matter what the percentage is? Then
you are also looking at people like the Remainder man or Reversionary interest of life estates.
Now you are looking at potentially agreements of sales, perhaps, even purchase of money
mortgages (inaudible). So there is a lot of problems with just saying “A equitable, full equitable
legal title of land and fee simple.” It also does not specify “what land and fee simple” the subject
land is kind of understood, but it does not specify that. So there could potentially be people that
would say, “Hey I have got full and equitable title of land and fee simple, it’s just not this land
and I have the right to apply for variance space on that.”

My concern is that as owners within the same CPR, as the Robert D. (inaudible) Trust who made
these changes take place. We have concerns that they maybe gaming the system somewhat in
trying to push through vacation rentals, under the process of being above board, and a hundred
percent okay. I would point out that the County approved the Subdivision Documents for this
Subdivision; Waipake one Subdivision in which short-term vacation rentals and hotel uses are
one hundred percent disallowed. Similarly, the Puuawa CPR, which we are members, also, have
that same restrictions. So my concern is that nobody (inaudible) impression that the changing of
the requirement for “Owner” allows an owner not to have the seventy-five percent approval, but
then it somehow upends a State law when we talk about condominiums. That is really my
concern, is its really just thinking if that language could be clarified a little bit to be a little bit
clearer, as to exactly what “owner” means rather than just saying that “legal equitable title.”

Mr. Hull: I am sorry, each speaker is allowed three minutes of time if you could wrap it up.

Mr. Freeman: Yes, absolutely. And then the last thing is the definition (inaudible) “land and fee
simple.” If you look at condominium projects where the underlying land is owned as part of the
common element, so that each individual within say two-hundred-ninety unit CPR has a
pertinent interest in the land in common, the fee simple land. I would say that was legal and
equitable title. So that would allow the way the language is currently written, would allow a
minority of less than one-third of one percent or about one-third of one percent owner of a two-
hundred and ninety unit project, to make application for a variance permit. I do not think that
you folks should be wasting your time throwing things out the door, after they have been applied
for on a constant basis. I think tightening up that language would make it so you can spend your
time doing the things that are most important, is just a personal opinion. And so, that is about it
for us. The only other thing that we had for our testimony is that we would like to see something
added to the CZO that requires a landowner applying under the definition whatever that is what
you come up with in the end (Inaudible) to give abutting and adjoining landowners notice that



there will be a public hearing on that variance request. We kind of feel like we have had to pull
teeth over the last eighteen years to get information. We have been through five different
attorneys, the County level, and three different Planning Directors—

Mr. Hull: John?

Mr. Freeman: Yes, I just want to...if there is any way to add that kind of language, so that we
could be informed on things that are happening not only our neighborhood but within our CPR
would be most appreciated. Thank you all so very much for your time and I am sorry I ran over.
I really, really, appreciate your time. Thank you very much for all your good work.

Mr. Hull: Thank you.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Thank you.

Mr. Hull: Does any Commissioners have any questions for the testifier?

Chair Nogami Streufert: It appears to be more of (inaudible) for clarification of some of the
concepts as opposed to objecting to any of the concepts, is that correct?

Mr. Hull: Yes, and I think Jodi can clarify when she goes into her staff report.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Thank you.

Mr. Hull: Looking. There are four other callers on the line. Is there anybody else that would
like to testify on any of the agenda items? Seeing none.

New Public Hearing

Zoning Amendment ZA-2020-16: A bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 8,

Kauai County Code, 1987, as amended, relating to Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance
(CZ0O). The proposal amends CZO Section 8-1.5 relating to the definitions of
“Applicant” and Owner,” CZO Section 8-3.1 relating to Zoning Applications, and CZO
-Section 8-3.2(g) relating to the time to file appeals= County of Kauai, Planning

Department.

Mr. Hull: We will move into the actual New Public Hearing. Item F.4. a. Zoning Amendment
ZA-2020-16: A bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 8, Kauai County Code, 1987, as
amended, relating to Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO). The proposal amends CZO
Section 8-1.5 relating to the definitions of “Applicant” and Owner,” CZO Section 8-3.1 relating
to Zoning Applications, and CZO Section 8-3.2(g) relating to the time to file appeals. The
applicant is the County of Kauai, Planning Department, and Jodi is our Planner, so I will
turn it over to her.

Deputy Planning Director Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa: Good morning. So again, this proposal is a
re-do and update from the recent Zoning Amendment that the Planning Commission voted to




approve on February 11, 2020. There were additional amendments to Kauai County Code
Section 8-3.1(b) that were necessary in addition, to the amendments proposed to Kauai County
Code 8-1.5 regarding the definitions of “Applicant” and “Owner.” Council Services informed us
that the additional Amendments was beyond the scope of ZA-2016-3, and the bills title. So the
Department respectfully asked the Council, that we have the opportunity to re-draft the Zoning
Amendment, and bring it before the Planning Commission, which is what we are doing now.
This updated Zoning Amendment seeks to do three main things.

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa read the Project Description and Use, Additional Findings, and
Preliminary Evaluation sections of the Director’s Report for the record (on file with the
Planning Department).

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: That is in a nutshell what the proposal seeks to do, and I can answer any
questions at this time.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any questions from the Commissioners to the Planning
Department?

Mr. Ho: I have a question, please.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Yes, please.

Mr. Ho: I have a question, please. Jodi, you say it is that “full and complete ownership is
required” for this application?

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: Yes.

Mr. Ho: So you are eliminating any percentage holders in the ownership.

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: In affect, it is requiring and putting notice on applicants to “get all the
ducks in the row.” So have all owners on the title to provide their consents or provide...often
times, for instance, in the case of a CPR, there are clauses written into CPR declarations that
specify any one Limited Common Element Owner can go ahead and file a zoning application
involving their own limited common element. Either you identify and put forward the document,
the CPR declaration that addresses, and gives authorization to any one owner to file their own
zoning application. It could be a notarized signed statement from all the owners on title so that
would just be filed and submitted alongside their zoning application. That is what we are asking
for. It really just encourages the owners, co-owners, to make that type of arrangement via an
agreement, or make sure it is already written in their CPR declaration or prior to submitting a
zoning application with the Department.

Mr. Ho: So, backing up one more time Jodi. If an ownership has more than one owner to it,
they, the owner that files the application must have all the other titleholders’ approval.

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: Yes.




Mr. Ho: And that has to be submitted to you how, in a written agreement or something like that?

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: Yes. Either through a written agreement that was already drafted, or
you know, we have accepted pieces of paper with signatures on that says, “I give so and so
permission to file a zoning application” and it has a sign off and notarized signature of all the
owners on title.

Mr. Ho: Thank you.

Mr. Hull: And Commissioner Ho, just to chime in a little bit too, what Jodi is getting at in
response to the question, is just given authorization by all the owners. What generally happens
now with CPR’s? CPR’s are going to be many of the bread and butter of this, because it is
multiple owners on a lot of record. Generally, CPRs will have already drafted within their
CPR’s the Power of Attorney being granted to each of the respective CPR owners to apply for
zoning and building permits. There are some older CPRs where the Power of Attorney was not
established. Indeed, in those situations the CPR owner that wants to apply for a zoning permit
would have to go and get authorization of all of those...his fellow CPR owners, to be authorized
to apply for it. Many of those older CPRs have gone through the process of updating to allow
each one of them to have Power of Attorney, so they do not have to get those signatures.

But it is something we have experienced many, many of times given the way that the laws

crafted of seventy-five percent. If you have five CPR unit owners on a lot of record, an applicant
only needed four signatures. The fifth owner would come in say “I object totally, this is part of
my lot, how can you approve this?” and we had to point to the law that allows for seventy-five
percent, so we had to go off of that paper. Therefore, it is trying that situation to say, “Two CPR
owners in particular, you folks either have to come into agreement and grant yourselves Power of
Attorney. And if there is no agreement this is a civil issue that you have to resolve civilly
between yourselves before you come to the Planning Department for an application.”

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any other questions from the Commissioners?

Ms. Otsuka: I just have a statement. I think this Amendment streamlines the process for the
Planning Department, and I think this way there is no question or doubt.

Mr. Hull: I have a quick question if you do not mind, Chair.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Yes, please.

Mr. Hull: Jodi, given the testifier and his particular concern about the statement of “Owner”
now, just stating, means “The holders of equitable title land and fee simple.” And whether that
percentage is one percent or a hundred percent, as the phrase “Full equitable and legal title” the
phrase “Full” is not in there. Your kind of been running points on this and you are the in-house
Attorney so, I defer to you, but is that an issue?

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: So “Equitable and legal title” would be in effect and “Fee simple” is the
whole thing. It is not a portion of it, it is not limitations and timelines, its “Fee simple” in




legalese is “all the sticks in the bundle” — all the property rights possible for a piece of land.
And so, although we could insert it, but I think the way it sounds now “Equitable and legal title
of land and fee simple” connotes all of it, all the sticks for all the land.

Mr. Hull: Yes, but I guess what I think the testifier was getting at is, what if there is just one
person in a group of many people that hold title, can that one person therefore...or does that one
person have to get the authorization of everybody listed?

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: No. The way it sets when we re-drafted the definition of “Owner”
which means now, “Holders of equitable and legal title of land and fee simple” that is the
definition of an “Owner” but of course, when we are talking about those who will apply, we are
requiring that to be everybody on title. I think this definition was based pulled off and was
pulled and mimicked from Honolulu definition, and we did do a survey of all the definitions
throughout the various municipalities. Therefore, it is something that mimics the Standards
uniformly across the State, and I think the definition does allow us the ability to make sure that is
everybody who holds title of any particular land.

Ms. Apisa: This is Donna, if I could just make a comment. I think that no matter what you do,
there is always going to be somebody who feels it is inequitable, but I think it is fair. I mean,
one minority owner could withhold any application, but on the other hand, I think that is the risk
of having multiple owners or CPR or Co-tenancy. You have to get along with your neighbors,
and it should be on the owners and not on the Planning Department.

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: Yes, and we might have to look at further Administrative Rules that we
could bring forward to the Commission, that makes it crystal clear in various scenarios what
we will be accepting. I know that I have looked up some other municipalities even
nationwide. So Santa Monica, has rules that set out, Okay, if you are a Trust, you are going
to need this type of paperwork: you are going to need your corporation, you are going to
need paperwork verifying who is the president, vice president etc. We could further define
for the public sake what we will be accepting in various scenarios. However, this is
definitely the first step to one align the ordinance to verify that it is owners and full owners
on the title that will qualify to be an applicant.

Mr. Ho: Jodi. If you have to pass, amendments to strengthen the language of what we are
looking at right now, the people or the owner who would challenge it. Will he automatically
given a free pass, if he is not in the amendment now? Alternatively, do we have to have a code
law to enforce?

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: And you know how we have been applying...given the case, the
(inaudible case) the Department has already been really scrutinizing applications and making
sure that applicants substantiate that they have authorization already. We have been applying the
applicant of this owner threshold already, given the reservations of the Intermediate Court of
Appeals.

Mr. Ho: Thank you.

Chair Nogami Streufert: There was a comment that was made by the testifier, that landowners
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abutting and adjacent to the land that was being re-zoned should be...isn’t there somewhere I
recalled that there is something somewhere else that says that, that has to happen (inaudible).

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: Yes, and so under 8-3.1 I believe it is, it is already a requirement for
search and zoning permits to require notification of landowners within a...is it twenty feet?
Hundred—?

Mr. Hull: The requirements for a Class IV Zoning Permit, Use Permit, a Variance Permit, or a
Special Permit that the landowner has to notify all property owners within three-hundred feet of
their outer property line. So that requirement is already there. There is one loophole of
individuals that does not get notified or contacted and that is the CPR owners within the lot
itself. So, for example, if there is a five-unit CPR, four of those owners would be notified
because they have to authorize or they have been given Power of Attorney. But if they had to
authorized, they have been notified. But that fifth CPR owner on a lot of record is a part owner
of the actually lot of record, so the applicant does not have to notify that fifth CPR owner
because technically, that is their partner; however, if they don’t have to get authorization under
the seventy-five percent rule we have right now, that is the one individual that’s never going to
get notified. By pushing it up to the one hundred percent or the full title holder then the CPR
that is proposing on an application, needs to not only notify all of their abutting property owners,
but all of their CPR owners in order to get their authorization to apply for the permit. (Inaudible)
they gave it Power of Attorney.

Chair Nogami Streufert: But the abutting and the adjacent property owners, do they have
to...that is not included in this, I mean, it doesn’t sound like there is anything that says that they
have to agree to it.

Mr. Hull: No. The abutting property owners do not have to agree. They are just given a notice.

Chair Nogami Streufert: I have a question about this because this was all done, Kauai County
from 1987 and there is a filing and processing fee of $30.00. Which in today’s dollars, because I
looked it up on Alexa and it is about $70.00 to $75.00. Does the $30.00’s cover the cost that the
County incurs with each one of these filings? Or should that be updated to include the increase
that the 1987 dollar has to 20207

Mr. Hull: So (inaudible) whenever you increase fees at the government level you have to go
through a study to demonstrate the proportional nexus of the work the Department is doing, and
the amount it is deriving in fees. We did one of those studies several years ago. I would say it
was not 1987, but I want to say it was 2005 or 2006; we actually did update the fee structure.
Class I Zoning Permits. Dale, correct me if I am wrong, were I believe $5.00 even at the turn of
the century. But when we updated it, it did move that Class I Zoning Permit up to $30.00. I
think there is strong argument to say we do a whole lot more work than $30.00 per application,
but that is what the study came out with; however, any desire to move it up and if you think that
is appropriate, Chair. The Department can look at updating the study to re-access because it has
been close to ten years since that study was done to re-access the proportional nexus between the
fees and the permit process.

Chair Nogami Streufert: I think that would be appropriate based upon the natural situation that
the County finds itself, not to make it more than what it worth but actually to come up with an
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evaluation that is appropriate.
Mr. Hull: Well we will put that on our radar, Chair.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any other questions from the Commissioners? If not, is there
anyone in the audience or who is on this call? I cannot see anything, so I am not sure.

Mr. Hull: So, for the members of the public that have not testified at this point, is anybody who
has called in would like to testify on this Agenda Item? Seeing none, Madame Chair. I will just
state for the Departments position, we are all in a very unique time right now, as far as it comes
to receiving public testimony. I think this is the first time...we have only had a few of these
meeting but the testifier did mention he has submitted written testimony. It was not within our
24- hour window to get to you folks ahead of the meeting so I leave it up to you folks whether or
not you would like to take action on this today. I think Jodi is ready or if you would like to defer
it so that you could receive that testimony before taking action. We leave it at your discretion.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Go ahead.

Ms. Apisa: Ithink he gave it orally. So I am good with what he gave orally.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Okay. Do we have a motion? Let us see, what is the Departments
recommendation at this point?

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa continued read the Preliminary Recommendation section of the
Director’s Report for the record (on file with the Planning Department).

Ms. Higuchi Sayegusa: Yes. The Department ask that it be approved and transmitted to Council.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Do I have a motion from any of the Commissioners?

Ms. Apisa: [ move that we approve Zoning Amendment ZA-2020-16 and move it on to the
County Council.

Ms. Otsuka: 1 seconded.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It’s been moved and seconded that we approve Zoning Amendment
ZA-2020-16 and that it be forwarded to the County Council. Any discussion? If not, could we
have a roll call vote, please?

Mr. Hull: Roll call. Commissioner Cox.

Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa.

Ms. Apisa: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ho.
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Mr. Ho: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Chiba.
Mr. Chiba: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka.
Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGracia.
Mr. DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Chair Streufert.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes 7 Ayes: 0 Nays. Madame Chair.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It has been approved. Moving on.

Mr. Hull: I will state too that, I believe they may be on here. Jodi and I will reach out to John
and Kristin folks to go over some clarifying points on their testimony. If we still do have
possible amendments, it does not foreclose the opportunity to work it up at Council. But we will
be reaching out to them.

Continued Agency Hearing

New Agency Hearing

Continued Public Hearing

Zoning Amendment ZA-2020-14: A bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 8,
Kauai County Code, 1987, as amended, relating to Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance (CZO). The proposal amends Section 8-27 of the CZO relating to

Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection = County of Kauai, Planning Department.
[Meeting cancelled 3/24/20, Director’s Report received, and hearing continued 5/12/20.]

Mr. Hull: Next Agenda Item is F.3.a. Zoning Amendment ZA-2020-14: A bill for an
ordinance amending Chapter 8, Kauai County Code, 1987, as amended, relating to
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO). The proposal amends Section 8-27 of the CZO

relating to Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection = County of Kauai, Planning
Department.
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Madame Chair and members of the Commission the Department is asking for a deferral on this
agenda item. The Shoreline Setback Ordinance has been in play for several years and in a
nutshell, the primary thrust of why we are submitting, and amendment request is to include an
updated study for the Coastal Erosion Patterns here in Kauai. Dr. Chip Fletcher, with University
of Hawaii (UH), has updated that study and so to get that new Data to corporate it to our formula
of (inaudible) setbacks is the primary thrust of this proposal; however, there have been some
implementation issues, as well as clarifying amendments that we are looking at including that
will help us implement it. And I am working with a working committee right now of Land Use
attorneys and private citizens, people like Ian Jung and Karen Diamond folks who have had a
vested interest in this Ordinance and its implementation. We are trying to work through some of
these issues so I just ask that the Planning Commission give us a little extra time. I anticipate a
one to two-month extension as necessary to weave through all these issues. But for right now, we
are asking for a one-month deferral to the first meeting in July. I am here if you have any
questions or comments as well.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any questions for Kaaina?

Ms. Apisa: Just to ask is one-month adequate. You said one our two-months, but you know, if
you need two.

Mr. Hull: Yes, I hope to have it where we are actually (inaudible) where we have common
ground. So tentatively, we are working to set that up on the 26, and I think it is adequate enough
time (inaudible) but two-months might actually be a little bit safer, quite honestly. So, I guess—

Chair Nogami Streufert: So, the first meeting in two-months will be August 11.

Mr. Hull: Yes, August 11.

Ms. Otsuka: Is that enough time?

Mr. Hull: Yes, August 11 would work for us.
Ms. Otsuka: I am ready to make a motion.

Chair Nogami Streufert: All right, please.

Ms. Otsuka: I move that we defer Zoning amendment ZA-2020-14 to August 11, meeting.
Ms. Cox: Isecond it.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It has been moved and seconded that we defer the consideration of an
Ordinance amending Chapter 8 Kauai County Code, 1987, relating to the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance that amends Section 8-27 of the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection to the
August 11, 2020 meeting. Any Discussion? If not, ready for the vote? Let us do this in roll call
also, please.
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Mr. Hull: Roll call Madame Chair. Commissioner Cox.
Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa.
Ms. Apisa: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ho.

Mr. Ho: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Chiba.
Mr. Chiba: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka.
Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGracia.
Mr. DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Chair Streufert.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes 7 Ayes: 0 Nays. Madame Chair.

All remaining publictestimony pursuantto HRS 92 (Sunshine Law)
CONSENT CALENDAR

Status Reports

Status Report (4/30/20) for Project Development use Permit PDU-2008-11,

Use Permit U-2008-10, and Classs IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2008-12,
Tax Map Key No. 2-8-08:001 (Lot 185) from Ian K. Jung attorney for Koloa Village,

LLC, as successor to Koloa Town LLc. (original Permittee).

Mr. Hull: Next on the Agenda Item we have G.1., Consent Calendar Status Report and this is a
Status Report for Project Development Use Permit PDU-2008-11, Use Permit U-2008-10, and
Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-2008-12, Tax Map Key No. 2-8-08:001 (Lot 185) from Ian K.
Jung attorney for Koloa Village, LLC, as successor to Koloa Town LLC. (Original Permittee).
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We have a Director’s Report and Dale is our Planner on that.

Staff Planner Dale Cua: Good morning Chair and members of the Planning Commission. What
you have before you again, is an extension request for this specific project.

Mr. Hull: Dale. Sorry, we are just on the Status Report.
Mr. Cua: Oh, the Status Report. I am sorry.

Mr. Hull: I apologize. As Clerk I messed up on that, this is on the Consent Calendar so without
any objections, it is automatically received. So, if any Commissioner wanted to have the Status
Report pulled off the Consent Calendar to discuss. Now would be the time otherwise, it is just to
receive for the record. My apologies on that.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any questions from the Commissioners or is there someone in
the audience that would like to speak on this? I am sorry. Is there someone? Did I hear
someone trying to speak?

Mr. Ian Jung: No. This is Ian Jung for the applicant, Koloa Village LLC. What I can do is give
an update on the Status Report if the Commissioners would prefer during the time of the
extension request Item that would make the most sense.

Chair Nogami Streufert: I think that would speed things up and it probably puts everything into
context. So if we could do that, it might be better. This is just about the Status Report and
receiving the status report or not receiving it. Do we have a motion for that?

Mr. Ho: I move that we accept the Status Report for Koloa Village, LLC.

Ms. Otsuka: I second.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It has been moved and seconded that we receive the Status Report on
Koloa Village, LLC. Any discussion? If not, all those in favor? Aye (Unanimous voice vote)
Any opposed? (None) Motion carried unanimously, 7:0.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Madame Chair.
GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS
Planning Director briefing to the Commission on the Planning Departments’s

COVID 19 operations and logistics, as well as the Planning Department’s
Coordinated efforts with the Kauai Emergency management Agency (KEMA).

Mr. Hull: Next, have General Business Matters. General Business Item I.1., Planning Director
briefing to the Commission on the Planning Departments® COVID 19 operations and
logistics, as well as the Planning Department’s coordinated efforts with the Kauai
Emergency management Agency (KEMA). So this is just an oral presentation at the request
of the Commission at the last meeting to just update you on our COVID 19 status, and
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response aspects. So, when Hawaii and America began to shut down, the Planning
Department was relatively quick in...both Jodi, myself, and the managers in making the
determination that in the interest of our employees, as well as the public that was trying to
access the Planning Department. We sent everybody home to telework on March 27, 2020.
We immediately began spinning up operations so that everything could be handled digitally
that is normally handled over the course of the front counter window or complaints with our
enforcement officer or Planning Commission proposals.

Part of the issue was being able to have people to...what is referred to as VPN into their
computer systems, and that means to have direct asses to their desktop remotely from their
homes. Because of security reasons, our IT Division does not allow personal home
computers to VPN into their desktops. So as I sent everybody home on the 27" to telework,
on the 28" I was working with our finance team to cannibalize all of our travel budget to
purchase office laptops for our employees to be able to work remotely. As what some
(inaudible) told to me was that laptops are the toilet paper 2.0 of the COVID emergency.
Toilet paper went first and then the laptops, so it took some time to secure them. It took
about three weeks for me to be fully staffed up with 28 Microsoft Surfaces for all our
employees to work remotely that is what they have been doing, all our permitting processes
are digitized.

You can fill them out on-line and submit them via email; we have the Digital Doc signature
capacity so people can sign those digitally. So that was very important to have that setup in
the immediate, and the one issue that we do have, and still have to do is payment, it cannot
be done digitally yet by our office. So any payments get sent in for the Zoning Permits via
regular mail, and that is the one area of inefficiency. But like I said, we spun everything up
to process permits and have been, as well as complaints, as well as of course we had to take
some time off from the Planning Commission to set you folks up, that has been set up now
and we are handling it okay it seems. Dale and his shop are processing of course all the
applications for things like Class IV Zoning Permits and Subdivisions digitally and getting
it to you folks, so we are setup to be digital and teleworking.

I will say the discussions I have had with staff over this COVID response, and the fact not
many of us are in with working directly with KEMA that is the Kauai Emergency
Management Agency. We did have to dedicate two of our staff members Shanlee Jimenez
and Donnie Sadora are full-time activated working at the Emergency Management Agency
in direct response to the COVID Crisis. The message in discussion I have had with staff is
while we are not directly involved in a lot of this, except for our enforcement team and we
will get into that a little later. Our position as the Planning Department is we do have to
review applications and ensure that everything meets regulations. But as we move out
of...as we are amid an economic crisis that we are not going to know how long it is going to
last.

One of my directives to our staff is tourism is not coming back anytime soon, and much of
our recovery is quite honestly, will be within the construction and development industry. I
have explained to our staff that we are not breaking any laws and we are not sweet dealing
any developers. It is just that in so far as we are one of the primary permitting review
agencies, we should not be a barrier to anybody that is left willing to invest and get projects
going. They still have to meet our regulations, but if they have problems, and generally we
don’t...we have always adhered to “We are not a consulting firm” it is the applicants
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responsibility and duty to understand the rules and regulations that get through to them.
That is how we generally have handled it for years, and I have explained to our staff that
right now during this time, we need to work with all the applicants regardless of who they
are. Small mom and pop sheds on the side to large scale developers, as much as we can
help them get through the process, we need to be there to ensure that again, our permit is not
the barrier. They have to meet the regulations, but as far as we can help, we can give those
phone calls to the Water Department or to the Department of Health to help facilitate and
ease these permits through, that is our responsibility. Our emergency response is helping
the economy return to what it what it needs to be.

And so, Dale and staff are very much taking that approach and trying to help as much as we
can. We are also finding while some of the work we are doing right now is inefficient
Some of it is very efficient. Teleworking for some of our permit reviews as well as trying to get
the permits moving, on average front counter technicians will do about thirty to forty permits a
week, and that is a good week. That is during normal times. Teleworking both Britni and
Wesley Masumura, Britni Ludington-Braun and Wesley Masumura, are two essentially senior
front counter individuals, last week did three hundred permits in one week. The efficiency with
being able to do it via teleworking has really shown that when we get out of this eventually if
granted by Human Resources, the Mayor’s Office, and Union discussions I would like to have
some of our staff teleworking, because again, it is entirely more efficient in some aspects. So
that is where we are the permitting area.

On the enforcement area, zoning enforcement I can say that they are the one Division that is
really interfacing also with KEMA, the Kauai Emergency Management Agency. Because when
the shutdown happened, there were only a few hotels that were left open. Hotels and motels
were designated as essential business, it could operate. Many of them shut down because they
did not have enough guest warranting them staying open. But the few that have remained open
have very specific quarantine measures in place as well as monitoring security enforcement to
ensure that people that are still coming into Hawaii are adhering to the quarantine requirements.
And in fact, many of the arrest that you see on Hawaii news now or on the Garden Island, many
of those arrest are made in direct conjunction with a hotel monitoring staff explaining to guest
that they cannot break quarantine and the guest continue to do it. And the hotel themselves,
calling the police on their own guest to ensure that quarantine is maintained. So that is what has
been happening at the hotel industry.

What our enforcement team was task to do is to monitor and ensure that vacation rentals are not
operating during this time. Vacation are a main stay of our economy, and there are roughly
four-thousands of them that operate during normal times. But because they don’t...because the
vast majority of them don’t have the ability to monitor, screen, and ensure that their guest are
adhering to quarantine policies the Governor did not categorize them as an essential business and
they are prohibited from operating. And I can say for the vast majority of vacation rentals, they
came into immediate compliance, they started taking their advertisements down. On any given
day there is roughly six to seven-thousand advertisements for TVR’s operating on Kauai. There
are four-thousand and they have multiple advertisements here and there, but there is six to seven
thousand within four days of Kauai and Hawaii going into shut down. The advertisements on the
world-side web which our third-party contractor monitors had decreased from six to seven
thousand to a thousand, there are only a thousand advertisements up. And when we went into
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those advertisements, the vast majority of those advertisements had actually already blocked out
the month of April and subsequently later in May, just saying “We are advertising but we are not
taking any bookings for now.” But there were still some that were advertising availability and so
TVR enforcement staff was notifying all of those, and I think we notified four or five hundred
operators that they are not to be advertising availabilities during this time. And of those that got
notice, almost all of them have come into compliance. There are still a handful of bad apples out
there, that are actively trying to advertise their services for international and mainland travels to
come here during the crisis, and so we are working to monitor and ensure that they do not
operate.

We also have our vacation rental staff and sometimes myself, at the airport with the screening
team to receive the mainland flights to ensure that they are not staying at TVR’s because again, it
is too hard and we are unable to monitor quarantine at TVRs. So for the most part most of the
people that are coming in are well behaved and many of them are residents returning home. But
we have had a few issues, I think last week we had two individuals that were trying to stay in an

Illegal TVR that one of our enforcement officers were well aware of, and so that did result
ultimately in a confrontation by the transients and ultimately an arrest by KPD of the individuals.
We are still out there; our team is monitoring vacation rentals and incoming guests at the airport
as well as on-line. We anticipate being part of the process for at least sometime here as we are
in discussions about how the State is going to begin opening once the quarantine is lifted for
inter-island travel coming here on the 15", But as far as vacation rentals and their ability to be
used by transpacific travelers that is looking and shaping up to be for some time, that is going to
be prohibited. So, our staff will be required to help in monitoring those services.

And that in a nutshell is for the most part where our Division is at. Again, our permitting team is
running digital, (inaudible) spun up now with Dale’s shop to review applications at the Planning
Commission level, our enforcement team is primarily focused on vacation rental operations as
they pertain to the COVID crisis, and then I can state that we are gradually beginning to fold
people back to the office as well. Right now, there are five other employees besides me, on site
here at the Planning Department. One of them is a front counter technician. We do take front
counter appointments; it is by appointment only as we have to limit how many people come into
our lobby because we share the lobby with Department of Motor Vehicles and the Finance
Department. So, we do have front counter appointments available and it is relatively easy to
make on-line on our web site, and we have some clerical staff in here as well to process the daily
mail, the payroll, all those things that are necessary.

We will be opening up a little bit more and having a little more staff come in over the next few
weeks as we begin to ease up, and you know, it is all contingent upon if there is a second spike
or a second wave folding the Department back out while we are bringing more people back in.
But to be honest, Commissioners, a fully staff department where everybody is no longer
teleworking if I am given the authority, and HR and the Mayor’s Office might have some
direction later. But if I am with the authority I have; I do not intend to bring our staff fully back
into the office until the COVID situation has been fully resolved or say we have a vaccine. And
that is just because as may of you are aware, the space issues of our office, there is no office that
has as little space as for as many employees as our Department. We make do and I am not
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complaining about it, but we literally have people working in some settings two to three feet
away from each other, where social distancing just cannot happen. Being that we have the
capacity to telework, I just feel we should fully use it as much as possible to ensure the safety of
the office.

Chair Nogami Streufert: (Inaudible). Are there people who are having a problem with using
digitized forms as specially the elderly or is there an alternative? Perhaps it is a little late for this
time, but if we can have an (inaudible) would not like to see this but if we had to re-do this again,
is there some kind of a fix for that or is there something in the works for them?

Mr. Hull: Yes. For those who cannot handle those forms and we come across it. One, we have
the front counter appointments and you have to log on-line to do appointments, but I have also
directed staff, if they call in to try and make an appointment, just make it up online for them.
They can come in-person and do it now because that is now set-up. If we end up in a situation
where we have to close things down again, indeed, it is digitized, but going back to the earlier
point of we need to help them along as much as possible, we have actually had some of our front
counter people like Britni, literally on the phone filling out the application for them. So the
sooner we fill it for them, the one issue we ran into is we still need their signature to authorize it.
And so, we still need to email it or send it to the applicant and have the applicant send it back. I
can recall with one situation where Britni had filled out the application for the applicant and even
sending it to them to DocuSign it and all they needed to do was type their name on it, the
individual was uncomfortable doing it just did not know how to figure out the system. So that
scenario is literally, we will mail it to you, and you mail it back to us. It is a lot more time
consuming, but it is the best we can do, I guess.

Chair Nogami Streufert: And if they are any timelines that are associated then those are put on
the side?

Mr. Hull: The timelines for filling out? There are no timelines for filling out the application.
The Department only has timelines once the application is deemed complete, but it is fully in our

arena once we deem it complete, so we have no problems meeting the deadlines.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Great. Any other questions? Commissioners?

Ms. Cox: Yes, I do. One is a question and one is just a comment. You mentioned, Kaaina, that
right now it is more efficient for some of the processes through telework. I am just
wondering...but then later you said, “Once we have the vaccine everybody will be back.” So, I
guess my comment is I hope we don’t necessarily go back to the way things, I hope we actually
use what you’ve learned and see if it makes more sense for people not (inaudible).

Mr. Hull: Sorry if I missed stated that, Commissioner Cox. Indeed, I am definitely with you, as
far as there are some aspects of enforcement, say the TVR enforcement. TVR enforcement is
done 99% digitally and therefore, can be done at home. Now all the staff has the equipment to
work at home so the TVR enforcement aspect of it, I intend to put them on a teleworking
schedule where they will have to cycle into the office every now and then, but indeed, they are
teleworking. And to go back to the front counter technicians, once back to normal we have four
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front counter tech. positions. Front counter technicians have two primary responsibilities and
they are to review and act on permits and to engage the public at the front counter when they
have questions and inquiries. So my desire is to ultimately, of those four rotate two by two’s
where it maybe one week or two weeks to where two are home teleworking and two are at the
office and are able to engage with the public that comes in. As I said, the permit review process
is entirely more efficient when they are at home. So, I am definitely with you, Commissioner
Cox, that very much is my intent I have voiced that intent to both the Managing Director and the
Mayor. Ultimately, it comes with the approval of not just our Human Resources Department but
also with Union discussions. I cannot think that Unions will fully object to that, but I want to
recognize that it is my intent to do that, but I do have to get the appropriate approvals.

Ms. Cox: Okay, great. Then my question was since you are the Planning Department. How
involved have you been with thinking about how the...you mentioned that you have been in
discussions about how tourism comes back, but are you also part of sort of a recovery plan

group?

Mr. Hull: T am sorry; I had written down my presentation and had left out our nearest and
dearest division, which is the Long-Range Division. The Long-Range are engaged with the
Economic Recovery Response Panels. So there is a series of teams that the Mayor and his
administration have set-up with private individuals, business owners, visitor industries people,
and our Long-Range people sit on those panels and engage in those discussions. And so, we are
definitely very much a part of that.

Ms. Cox: Okay, good. I thought so, but I just wanted clarification. Thanks.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Could I ask a question about the telework thing? There is difference
between telework and flexible work schedules because telework is just doing work at home
during the regular hour’s vs the flexible work schedule where you tailor it too your telework
schedule. Is there any type of flexibility for that? Because it seems like that would be something
that would be very useful for this.

Mr. Hull: Yes, there is some need for teleworking to have some normalcy within the hours that
we can get in touch with those folks that are working at home. There is that, but within that, as
long as are not too off and we can allow for some coverage and interface with those teleworkers,
we are absolutely open to flexible hours. And I can certainly say to some degree for the TVR
enforcements, when we get back to some normalcy; right, one of the matters that some illegal
TVR operators advertise are during off hours. So indeed, while our TVR inspectors will log on
to the websites at midnight because some of those operators are thinking that “well, County staff
is done at 4:30 p.m. but it is now midnight here but it is 8:00 a.m. in New York City so therefore,
I can advertise. Joan, one of our TVR guru’s Saturday at midnight she will be on-line
monitoring these websites.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Great. Are there any other questions from the Commissioners?
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Ms. Apisa: Just a comment. I want to give a shout out of recognition to Mike Laureta. Saturday
I had a TVR question, so I just shot him an email while it was on my mind expecting to hear
from him on Monday. However, within ten minutes I has a response back.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Great for flexible work schedules. Any other questions or comments?

Mr. Hull: Seeing none.

Request for Time Extension for Project Development Use Permit PDU-2008-11,
Use Permit U-2008-10, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2008-12,

Tax Map Key No. 2-8-008:001 (Lot 185) from Ian K. Jung, attorney for Koloa
Village, LLC, as successor to Kola Town LLC (original Permittee.

Mr. Hull: Next moving on to 1.2. Request for Time Extension for Project Development Use
Permit PDU-2008-11, Use Permit U-2008-10, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2008-12,
Tax Map Key No. 2-8-008:001 (Lot 185) from Ian K. Jung, attorney for Koloa Village,
LLC, as successor to Kola Town LLC (original Permittee). We have a Director’s Report
Pertaining to this matter and I will turn it over to Dale.

Staff Planner Dale Cua: Good morning Chair and members of the Planning Commission.
Again, what you have before you are consideration of applicants to amend Condition No. 21, of
the project development Use Permit, Class IV Zoning Permit, and Use permit to allow additional
time to complete the proposed development.

Mr. Cua read the Project Description and Use, Additional Findings, and Preliminary
Evaluation sections of the Director’s Report for the record (on file with the Planning
Department).

Mr. Cua: The request works together with the Status Report was submitted and it is the
Departments recommendation to support the applicants request and that concludes the Director’s

Report regarding the project. Do you have any questions?

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any questions from the Commissioners to Dale?

Mr. Chiba: I have a question just for clarification. Does this extension include the completion of
the housing (inaudible)?

Mr. Cua: Correct. So, the extension would be for both phases of the project.

Mr. Chiba: Thank you.

Mr. Ho: Dale?

Mr. Cua: Yes?

Mr. Ho: The project owner now is the second owner of the (inaudible) the original owners sold

it to him. Is that correct?
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Mr. Cua: I believe so, yes.
Mr. Ho: So, all Conditions of the first Permit is assumed by the second owner? Correct?
Mr. Cua: Correct. The project requirements run with the property.

Mr. Ho: I think at one time if I am not mistaken, they had asked as part of the building process,
that the studios be dedicated to workforce housing. Am I correct in that assumption or is my
memory failing me?

Mr. Cua: No. In their previous action that came before the Planning Commission and Ian, can
correct me, but there was a proposal to integrate residential units within the commercial portion
of the project.

Mr. Ho: My question would be having the number dedicated to workforce, has that number
changed? Maybe—

Mr. Cua: Yes. That I am not sure in the number of workforce housing. I know they were
hoping to address some of those requirements to the residential portion of the project.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Perhaps it is time to have the applicant come up and ask for us to hear
their presentation and to ask questions of them if there are no other question for Dale? Could
we have the applicant come up, please. Or (Inaudible).

Mr. Ian Jung: I will approach. Good morning Commissioners. This is Ian Jung, on behalf of
Koloa Village, LLC. Thank you for the opportunity to present on our Extension Request by
way of background, this project as Dale had indicated was a project entitled back to 2008. But
after the recession in 2008, you know property when into foreclosure and the original lender took
the property back in 2011. Then the current owner that is the owner now, acquired the property
in 2014, and has been diligently chipping away at a lot of the Conditions that were approved
under the original permit set. So as of right now, where we are at is, we have got vertical on all
eight (inaudible) buildings that span about three-acre portions of the five-and-a-half-acre lot.
And so, if you have driven by Koloa recently you can see a lot of the sticks going up. So, we
have Waikomo side and Wili Wili side fully under construction there, as you see in Exhibit B.,
we do have a Conceptual Site Plan laid out you.

There are going to be eight (8) buildings within the commercial component. And Commissioner
Ho’s comment with regard to our recent amendment last year around this time, we went in to
amend the first phase of the commercial component to allow for residential use on what was
proposed to be the office space of the elevated floor of the first set of buildings. So, we did
convert those into studio uses and there are going to be fourteen (14) of those studio uses. This
project was approved Pre-Housing Ordinance, so we capitalized on the existing thirty-four (34)
residential units and pulled fourteen (14) out of those thirty-four (34), to allow for that
conversion. But if we do go to extend on our new unit counts in the residential section, which is
phase two, then we will be subject to the Affordable Housing Ordinance to get that additional
density.
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However, we are monitoring, many of you know that the Affordable Housing Bill that is going
through Council right now, has exempted projects like this, where it is Mixed Use Multi-family
Dwelling Units that will be more for a middle-income type family to be exempt from the
Affordable Housing Ordinance. So we are monitoring that and we a probably accommodate that
in the next year of so depending on what happens with the ordinance. The project is still slated
to move forward to achieve those thirty-four (34) units and some additional residential units
subject obviously, to the Affordable Housing Ordinance. The first phase is well under
construction which will include fourteen (14) studio size rental units, which will be, I don’t want
to call them affordable” but they are or will qualify for the Affordable Rental Income Tax
Incentive, so they will be at a rate that is considered affordable by the County.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Ian, does that mean that these are the units’ second floor of the
commercial buildings? Is that where these efficiency or apartments are going to be?

Mr. Jung: Correct, and they are going to be you know, when the (inaudible) took over he had a
good meeting with some of the restaurant tours and business operators, and what they were
saying they needed was smaller affordable units on-site that would account for potential
employees to live there. So when we came back before the Commission in 2019, we re-designed
those units to be three to four hundred units per square foot, studio size units that could
accommodate a smaller micro unit for the overall project. And those would be in addition to the
one, two, and three-bedroom units in the phase two residential component.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is that indicated on any of the diagrams that you got here?

Mr. Jung: I did not indicate them in this plan as a part to what I do. I can get over to the
Commission our June 19, submittal which identifies the floor plans for those units.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Right now, (inaudible) they are still office suites.

Mr. Jung: (Inaudible) sorry. I attached the wrong middle; I should have attached the right one.
But I can get you that submittal which shows the floor plan layout for those three to four hundred
per square foot units on building A and F.

Chair Nogami Streufert: A and F?

Mr. Jung: So, with regard to all the Conditions in our Status Report we chipped away at a
number of those Conditions. We have the dedications into the County for the Landscape Plan,
the road infrastructure, and all the outside improvements as you may have seen as you drive by
all the array has been fully constructed. Our next step once we go vertical is to incorporate the
Landscape Plan that was modified a year ago based on Planning’s request. The Landscape Plan
is in and has been recorded against the property (inaudible) and will run with the land as
Commissioner Ho requested.

Mr. Ho: Ian, those units, those smaller studio units there, do they have cooking facilities within
them?
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Mr. Jung: I did not catch the question. They have (inaudible) facilities.
Mr. Ho: Cooking facilities, Ian.

Mr. Jung: Yes, they will have a kitchen. When we call it a studio, it will still have a micro
kitchen unit.

Ms. Cox: Ian, I don’t know if I followed you earlier, I think you clarified this, so by having
those fourteen (14) studios you are reducing the number of other residential units or is the
residential section still going to have the same?

Mr. Jung: Yes, and this is where it gets a little complicated because what happens post 2008, is
we moved into the South Kauai Community Form-based Code. So that superseded our current
Zoning Code which allocated a density spread that was allowable for the overall project. But
with the South Kauai Community Plan, we can kind of come up with another concept of density
based on the types of units and design of unit. So the next phase of once we start, some of the
multi-family dwelling unit portions on phase two for the fourteen (14) that was deducted from
the original residential project to go over to the commercial project side, we have to come back
to Planning to see how we can now materialize an additional fourteen (14) into the residential
project. So we are working through that now to figure out how to re-achieve the density that was
pulled off the residential side of phase two, and fold in to phase one of the commercial side. So
that is on-going, and we will come back to the Commission to modify the permits once we
achieve a plan for that.

Ms. Cox: So, the intent then would actually be increase by fourteen (14) livable units over the
whole project.

Mr. Jung: Correct, yes. There will be a net reduction to eliminate the office space to put in
space that is more residential.

Ms. Cox: Okay, thanks.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Ian, I think you had mentioned that there was two buildings that you
were going to be converting to these studio apartments A—

Mr. Jung: I am sorry. Itis F and L., in the back. So, F. and H. as one building, and then I. in the
back.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Those are not fronting Koloa Road. Fronting more of the Wili Wili
Road?

Mr. Jung: Correct.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is that going to be to the (inaudible) units, or the livable units or the
houses?
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Mr. Jung: Idid not quite catch that question.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is that adjacent to where the other phase two is going to be?

Mr. Jung: Yes, there is a parking lot the bisects the Koloa shops components and the Koloa
resident’s component so it will be relatively near each other, but there is a parking lot that will be
in between those two sections. Yes, as a reason we are asking for another two years, is we
expect construction of the shops component by the end of this year and then from a financial
standpoint we will use that to leverage the residential construction for the residential side of the
project.

Chair Nogami Streufert: And one year would be enough to develop the residential side of it?

Mr. Jung: That is the goal, because Shio is our Contractor and they are moving very quickly
now that the construction has been allowed to re-start. Siding is actually going on as speak.

Chair Nogami Streufert: I am not sure if this is a question for either Dale or for you. Is there
any requirement...is there any Condition in here a continuing Condition for Status Reports on an
annual basis?

Mr. Cua: Yes. Itis covered in Condition No. 20, of the original permit. So if you look at the
very end of my Report, I mention Condition No. 20, which talks about the continual submittal of
status report.

Chair Nogami Streufert: But his is separate from any permits that would be coming in to make
any changes to the building or to the development, correct?

Mr. Cua: Correct. So this is specifically as it relates to Condition No. 21, which is the time to
perform.

Mr. Ho: Ian, one question, please. The way these are configured, you have commercial bottom,
and these units are above?

Mr. Jung: Yes. So it is a Mixed Use Project so we have retail on six (6) of the buildings on the
first and second floor and then we are going to have retail and residential on two (2) of the
buildings. You will see that there is a third-floor plate, but that third-floor plate is not for a third-
floor per se, but there is three rooftop rental areas that can be utilized for restaurant space or
office space. It is only two stories with a third-floor rooftop component on three of the
buildings.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is that only one unit on each one of the three buildings, on A, D, and E,
is that correct?

Mr. Jung: Correct.
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Chair Nogami Streufert: Dale, does the Plan fit into the Form-based Planning that is already
being accepted?

Mr. Cua: Well actually, they have superseded the South Kauai Community Plan, but it was the
Departments desire that they push these buildings closer to Koloa Road and they obliged to do it
and though it worked to our benefit. They were not required to at the time back in 2008, but we
were trying to work with the applicant at the time to keep the character of the town similar so by
pushing up buildings closer to the roadways, and keeping the parking to the rear of the buildings.

Chair Nogami Streufert: And are there enough parking space at this point based upon the
additional studio apartments?

Mr. Cua: There should be, yes.

Mr. Jung: If we were required to have on-site parking and then create a street-scape with outside
parking that could accommodate greater Koloa, then there is more than enough parking right
now to satisfy the requirements.

Chair Nogami Streufert: They question was to ask just because Koloa Town always does not
have enough parking.

Mr. Cua: Yes.
Mr. Jung: Right.

Ms. Apisa: Nowhere does.

Mr. Ho: Ian, in your Exhibit “A”. I am looking at a set of drawing there. I see sidewalks of the
Koloa area, is the sidewalk part of your responsibility or is it the County’s responsibility?

Mr. Jung: We were required to construct the streetscape, so the sidewalks are all constructed,
and the parking is all constructed, and it is fully complete now. If you take a drive down there
the only thing that is not installed within that area is the Landscape Plan, which is the next round
once vertical construction is done. You could walk from the corner of Koloa Road and Wili Wili
Road up to the next building, which would be the new Tasting Room and the Wine Shop up
there and it is circled around the entirety of the property. And parking is included around the
perimeter of the property as well, and it ranges from angle stalls to parallel stalls.

Chair Nogami Streufert: And you anticipate that the construction on this phase will be
completed by the end of the year?

Mr. Jung: That is the goal. Whether that will have (inaudible) is another question. But yes, if
you do take a spin down there, they are putting on siding and moving along pretty quickly here.
We would anticipate them being down by the fourth (4') quarter of 2020, is our projection.
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Chair Nogami Streufert: All right. Any other questions for the Ian, the applicant or for the
Department?

Mr. DeGracia: Ian, I have a question. So it looks like phase one might be completed by the end
of the year, being that they are already working on the building siding going on. Are you folks
anticipating phase two to start sometime next year? Do you folks have an estimated start time?

Mr. Jung: We had an estimated start time of the third quarter of this year for the residential side.
But once the COVID situation, it hung us up because we had to stop construction and it delayed
the process, so it is looking more like fourth (4') quarter of this year or first quarter of 2021.

Mr. DeGracia: Thank you.

Ms. Cox: So, of the commercial being a little slow because of this whole situation. That is not
going to prevent you from going ahead with the (inaudible) of the residential area.

Mr. Jung: It should not. But with the financing world and the way it is now, the idea was to
leverage the commercial part to start with the residential. We will just have to wait and see what
the markets are looking like when we come across that, but he plans are all underway. We are
keeping our fingers crossed.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any other questions? Did I hear someone? Then we are open
for a motion.

Ms. Apisa: I move that we defer extension for Project Development Use Permit PDU-2008-1,
Use Permit U-200-10, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-2008-12, TMK NO. 2-8-008:001. Lot
185, to June 10, 2022.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is there a second?

Ms. Cox: (Inaudible) say approve. Because you went out right about...was it approved?

Chair Nogami Streufert: This is (inaudible) Condition No. 21, of Project Development Use
Permit, Class [V Zoning Permit, and Use Permit to allow additional time to complete the
proposed development.

Ms. Otsuka: So is it a deferral or is it approval—
Ms. Cox: Yes, that is what —

Chair Nogami Streufert: It is to approve the amendment to extend—

Ms. Otsuka: Yes, to approve the amendment to allow a two-year extension is that correct. So
that—

Mr. Jung: That would be preferred from the applicant’s standpoint instead of a deferral.
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Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa, just for clarity for the record. Is your motion to approve the
request to extend?

Ms. Apisa: Yes.

Mr. Hull: Okay.

Ms. Cox: In that case, I second it.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It has been moved and seconded to approve the Amendment Condition
No. 21, Project Development Use Permit, Class IV Zoning Permit, and Use Permit to allow
additional two years’ time to complete the proposed development to June 10, 2022. Is there any
discussion? If not, could we have a roll call vote, please?

Mr. Hull: Roll call Madame Chair. Commissioner Cox.

Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa.

Ms. Apisa: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ho.

Mr. Ho: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Chiba.

Mr. Chiba: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka.

Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGracia.

Mr. DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Chair Streufert.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes 7 Ayes: 0 Nays. Madame Chair.

Mr. Jung: Thank you Commissioners.
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Chair Nogami Streufert: Thank you.

Ms. Otsuka: Thank you.

Petition to Appeal Decision of the Planning Director; Exhibit “A” — “I”; Certifcate of
Service (5/6/20) by Jonathan J. Chun, Attorney for Appellant David Houston 1997
Trust, in the matter of the application of David Houston 1997 Trust appealing Notice
of Violation & Order To Pay Fines executed on April 27, 2020 for property located
in Moloaa Hui Lots, Kawaihau, Kauai, Hawaii, Tax Map Kev No. (4) 4-9-014:020
0001.

a. Memorandum (6/2/20) from Kaaina S. Hull, Clerk of the Commission, to Honorable

Commissioners of the Kauai Planning Commission recommending referral of than

Appeal of the Planning Director’s Decision Related to the Planning Director’s Notice
of Violation & Order to Pay Fines for the unpermitted construction of a retaining wall

along Moloaa Stream in Special Management Area of Moloaa, David Houston 1997
Trust . Tax map Key (4) 49014020, Moloaa Hue Lots, Kauai, received on May 18,
2020, for referral to Boards and Commissions as Contested Case File No. CC-2020-6.

Mr. Hull: Next moving on to I.3. Petition to Appeal Decision of the Planning Director;
Exhibit “A” — “I”’; Certificate of Service (5/6/20) by Jonathan J. Chun, Attorney for
Appellant David Houston 1997 Trust, in the matter of the application of David Houston
1997 Trust appealing Notice of Violation & Order To Pay Fines executed on April 27,

2020 for property located in Moloaa Hui Lots, Kawaihau, Kauai, Hawaii, Tax Map Key No.
(4) 4-9-014:020 0001.

And then you also have a memorandum from myself, Kaaina S. Hull, Clerk of the Commission,
to Honorable Commissioners of the Kauai Planning Commission recommending referral of than
Appeal of the Planning Director’s Decision Related to the Planning Director’s Notice of
Violation & Order to Pay Fines for the unpermitted construction of a retaining wall along
Moloaa Stream in Special Management Area of Moloaa, David Houston 1997 Trust , Tax map
Key (4) 49014020, Moloaa Hue Lots, Kauai, received on May 18, 2020, for referral to Boards
and Commissions as Contested Case File No. CC-2020-6.

Members of the Commission my apologies I was under impression that Jonathan Chun would be
submitting a formal letter to you folks concerning this issue. Ultimately, what has transpired is
that the Department and I, and the attorney representing the party have come to an agreement.
They have paid the necessary fines, which we have stipulated, to being $7500.00, as well as they
are applying for the necessary permits. I had Leslie Takasaki the email that Jonathan Chun had
sent me on Wednesday. My apologies, I was under the impression he was going to send
something else, but that was his notice of withdrawal so you folks have it and wasn’t officially
on the agenda but I can read it on to the record where Jonathan states, “my client has agreed to
pay a fine in the amount of $7500.00 to resolve the above Notice of Violation. Please prepare
the necessary paperwork that needs to be signed to resolve the matter based on this resolution we
will withdraw our Notice of Appeal to the Planning Commission.”

So that documentation has been submitted over and he is in the process of, I guess securing the
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SMA Permits. If you folks have any questions about this case I am, free here to answer them.
However, we will ultimately just be requesting that a motion be made to receive the petition to
appeal, and a motion to receive as it might sound like that is an approval. It is not a motion to
receive within parliamentary procedures really a motion to receive and put to bed and put to rest
and it is no longer going to be reviewed. So, if you folks have any questions I am here, but given
Jonathans request to withdraw. We would ask for a motion to receive.

Mr. Ho: The motion to receive will close this matter.
Mr. Hull: Correct.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Are there any other questions for Kaaina? We are ready for a motion
then.

Ms. Apisa: I move that we receive the petition to appeal decision of the Planning Director.

Ms. Otsuka: I second.

Ms. Apisa: Exhibit “A” — “I”; Certificate of Service (5/6/20) by Jonathan J. Chun, Attorney
for Appellant David Houston 1997 Trust, in the matter of the application of David Houston
1997 Trust appealing Notice of Violation & Order To Pay Fines executed

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is there a second?

Ms. Otsuka: I second.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is there any discussion? The motion is to receive the Petition to appeal
the Decision by the case by Jonathan Chun for appellant David Houston 1997 Trusts. Is there
any discussion? If not, could we have a roll call vote, please?

Mr. Hull: Roll call Madame Chair. Commissioner Cox.
Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa.

Ms. Apisa: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ho.

Mr. Ho: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Chiba.

Mr. Chiba: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka.
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Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner DeGracia.
Mr. DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Chair Streufert.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes 7 Ayes: 0 Nays. Madame Chair.

COMMUNICATIONS (For Action)

Mr. Hull: Moving right along we have no Communications for Actions.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Subdivision

Mr. Hull: Now we have Committee Reports, the Subdivision Committee Reports. I will turn it
over to Commissioner Ho.

Mr. Ho: We had a rather lengthy meeting this morning one item for tentative map approval for
State Department, DLNR, it was approved and that was our meeting,.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Do we have a motion to accept the Committee Report?

Ms. Apisa: I move to accept the Subdivision Committee Report.
Ms. Cox: Isecond.

Chair Nogami Streufert: It has been moved and seconded that we accept he Subdivision
Committee Report. Are there any questions for Commissioner Ho or for other members of the
Subdivision? If not, all those in favor signify by saying aye? Aye. (Unanimous voice vote) Any
opposed? (None) Motion carried 7:0.

UNFINISIHED BUSINESS ( For Action)

Mr. Hull: There is no Unfinished Business

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Hull: Now moving on there is no further New Business

For Action- See Agenda F for Project Descriptions
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ANNOUNCEMENTS
Topics for Future Meetings

The following regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held at
9:00 a.m., or shortly thereafter on July 14 2020. The Planning Commission
anticipates meeting via teleconference but will announce its intended meeting
method via agenda electronically posted at least six days prior to the meeting date.

Mr. Hull: Announcement, Topics for Future Meetings. We have the Somers’ case coming up.
We do not have a second meeting in June. The next time we will be convening will be July 9,
2020. It states June 23, 2020, but we do no agenda items for that meeting. The next Planning
Commission meeting will be, sorry, I said that wrong; it’s July 14, 2020. At that meeting, we
will have the Somer’s request returning concerning the new barn extension building being
proposed in Kilauea. As well as tentatively, I can say, we will be having Coco Palms to give
their Status report. I have been playing phone tag with the representative who is over on the
mainland, but as soon as we are done here, I hope to call him back, again, and hopefully, we will
be able to get in touch bases, and set that meeting. Aside from requesting that meeting, as the
Commission wanted me to at the last meeting, they do have a Status Report that is due at the end
of this month. Once that officially comes in, and then indeed, they are required to go back to you
to give that report. By request or by mandate, they must come back to you. I do not have any
other future topics to discuss. Inaudible).

Mr. Ho: Is there an “H” on your agenda schedule there, Kaaina?

Mr. Hull: Yes. So that we moved to the end of the agenda, but before I turn it over to the
County Attorney to go with you folks in Executive Session. I just wanted to check, if there are
any other topics that you folks were interested in seeing on future agendas.

Ms. Apisa: I would just like to clarify. So we delete the June 23, 2020 meeting from our
calendar, correct.

Mr. Hull: Yes. Correct. There will not be a June 23.
Ms. Apisa: Okay. It is gone.
Mr. Ho: Glenda, could I ask for 10 minutes? Our next item might be a lengthy one.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Before we do that, how about if we make a motion to go into Executive
Session and to Adjourn after that, and shortly after that, we will take a 10-minute to 15-minute
break. Would that work?

Mr. Ho: I thought we could do the recess now.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Is everyone in agreement with that? In addition, that we will go into
the motion for Executive Session.

Ms. Apisa: (inaudible)?

Mr. Hull: Sorry. This is Kaaina. Just for technical purposes, because you folks are going to
have to log off and then call back into Executive session. Is there any chance, Chair and
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Commissioner Ho, that one of the Commissioners or the attorney: I cannot remember who is
supposed to do it, read the executive session language and then go into executive session where
you take a 10-minute recess before calling into the Executive Session meeting? Is that okay?

Chair Nogami Streufert: That is fine. So, Kaaina, you are saying that we have to log off this,
and then log back on again.

Mr. Hull: No. If you go onto the Calendar on Teams, there is a separate Teams meeting for the
Executive Session. Because it is just between you folks, you folks are the only ones that are
invited in there. I cannot even go into that thing. If you folks have problems logging in to it, I
am sure Matt will be administering it and can call you folks into it.

Chair Nogami Streufert: Do we need a motion to go into Executive Session and then to adjourn
after that?

Mr. Ho: I move that we go into Executive Session.

Chair Nogami Streufert: And adjourn shortly thereafter.

Ms. Otsuka: Kaaina, do we need to read the whole Executive Session details?

Mr. Hull: I am looking at Matt on my screen right now. Matt, do they have to read that? Or do
they have to read that language?

County Attorney Matthew Bracken: I can read a shorten version of it.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this
executive session is to consult with County’s legal counsel on gquestions, issues,
status. and procedural matters. This consultation involves consideration of the
powers, duties, privileges, and immunities, and/or liabilities of the Commission and
the County as they relate to Civil NO. 18-0192 (JKW).Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-
2007-1. Use Permit U-2007-1, Special Permit SP-2007-1 for property located at Tax
Map Key NO. (4) 2-8-200: por. 005: Kauai Springs, Inc.

Mr. Bracken: Okay so, Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose
of this executive session is to consult with County’s legal counsel as it relates to the Kauai
Springs, Inc. Appeal.

Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4). the purpose of this
executive session is to consult with County’s legal counsel on the powers, duties,

privileges, and immunities, and/or liabilities of the Commission as they relate to

Contested Case Proceedings.

Mr. Bracken: The purpose of the second executive session is to consult with County’s legal
counsel as it relates to powers, duties, and privileges, of the Commission.
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Chair Nogami Streufert: All those in favor of going into Executive Session and adjourning
shortly thereafter, say aye. Aye. (Unanimous voice vote) Any opposed? (None) Motion carried
7:0.

The Commission moved into Executive Session at 11:00 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Nogami Streufert: Seeing that we are at the end of our Agenda, the Chair will entertain a
motion to adjourn.

Ms. Otsuka: I move to adjourn today’s meeting.

Chair Nogami Streufert adjourned the meeting at 11:36 a.m.

Respectfully submited by:

Arléen Kuwamura,
Commission Support Clerk

() Approved as circulated (add date of meeting approval)

( ) Approved as amended. See minutes of meeting.
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APPLICATION AND MOTION TO AMEND MASTER PERMIT AND 2006 PERMIT

Come now HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC., a Hawaii corporation ("HCI"),
and NA PALI BREWING COMPANY L.L.C., a Hawaii limited liability company
("Na Pali Brewing"), Applicant in the above-captioned proceedings, by and through their
undersigned attorneys, and requests the Planning Commission of the County of Kauai for a
Special Management Area Use Permit, Use Permit, Project Development Use Permit, and Class IV
Zoning Permit, and to amend Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-88-4, Use Permit
U-88-25, Variance Permit V-88-6, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-88-30, as amended
(collectively, the "Master Permit"), and Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2006-1,
Project Development Use Permit PDU-2006-1, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2006-1
(collectively, the "2006 Permit"), as set forth herein. This request is madé pursuant to
Sections 1-6-16 and 1-12-9 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Planning Commission
of the County of Kauai ("PC Rules"), Sections 7.0 and 8.0 of the Special Management Area Rules
And Regulations of the County of Kauai ("SMA Rules"), Sections 8-3.2 and 8-9.4(a) of the
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the County of Kauai ("CZO") relating to Use Permits, CZO
Article 10 relating to Project Developments, and CZO Sections 8-3.1(f), 8-8.4(4) and 8-9.4(b)
relating to Zoning Permits.

SUMMARY

The Hanalei Commercial Center ("HCC"), which is situated on certain property
known as Lot 17, located in Hanalei, Kauai, Hawaii, was approved by the Planning Commission
on April 27, 1988. The Master Permit allowed the following commercial uses on Lot 17: the

renovation of two existing buildings; the relocation of two buildings (including the Hanalei School
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Building); the construction of a new two-story building and two new single-story buildings; the
construction of parking, together with driveways, sidewalks, culverts and related improvements;
the renovation of an existing single-family residence for Employee Housing; the construction of a
Sewage Treatment Plant ("STP"); and a Land Coverage Variance allowing 25% Land Coverage
in the CZO Open District on Lot 17, provided that the Total Gross Floor Space in the HCC did not
exceed 25,000 square feet.

On November 14, 2006, the Planning Commission approved an Amendment to
the Master Permit and a new SMA Use Permit and Project Development Use Permit
("2006 Permit") which allowed the following new uses on Lot 17: the construction of thirty-five
(35) new unpaved parking spaces; the construction of three (3) new single-family residences to be
used for Employee Housing; the relocation of an access road to the mauka taro lands; and an
increase in the allowable Land Coverage in the CZO Open District on Lot 17 from 25% to 33%:%.

HCI owns a 7,822 square foot unimproved lot ("Parcel 9") located adjacent to the
eastern end of Lot 17. The Applicant would like to develop a Craft Brewery on Parcel 9. In
addition, the Applicant wishes to make parking and driveway improvements within the eastern
portion of Lot 17 and to modify certain prior Conditions of Approval for the Master Permit and

the 2006 Permit. To do this, the Applicant is requesting approvals from the Planning Commission

to do the following:

1. To allow the development of a Craft Brewery on Parcel 9.

2. To increase the commercial parking in the eastern portion of Lot 17.

3. To allow a portion of the parking for the Craft Brewery to be located
on Lot 17.
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4. To extend and amend the configuration of the Driveway within the eastern
portion of Lot 17.

5. To allow the development of a Sidewalk and Pedestrian Bridge within the
eastern portion of Lot 17.

6. To reduce the permitted Employee Housing in the eastern portion of Lot 17
to the two existing single-family residences, so that the total available Employee Housing units for
the Hanalei Commercial Center will be three (3) units.

7. To relocate the Taro Access within the eastern portion of Lot 17.

8. To increase the permitted land coverage in the portion of Lot 17 located in
the CZO Open District to 45% (32,175 square feet), subject to the following restrictions:

a. The land coverage in the portion of Lot 17 located in the CZO
Neighborhood Commercial District shall not exceed 80%.

b. The total enclosed Commercial Floor Space (i.e., enclosed floor
space used exclusively for public commercial purposes) in the portion of Lot 17 located in the
CZO Neighborhood Commercial District shall not exceed 25,000 square feet.

c. The total land coverages of both Employee Housing units shall not
exceed 4,000 square feet.

d. The improvements within the portion of Lot 17 located in the CZO
Open District shall be limited to: the two Employee Housing units; storage/equipment sheds;
parking spaces; driveways; sidewalks; Taro Access; vehicular and pedestrian bridges; culverts;

and signage, railings and other accessory structures related to such improvements.
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9, To amend Condition 4.d. of the 2006 Permit to read as follows:

"d.  Applicant shall maintain and update on a regular
basis a list of Hanalei Center [employee's] employees
(both current and retired) desiring the use of the
employee housing units. At a minimum, such a list
should identify the individual, family size, and
starting date of employment at Hanalei Center. At
the time of housing availability, all individuals
should be contacted and provided an opportunity to
confirm or deny their interest in the housing. [Fength
Only upon this list being exhausted can the applican
consider "other employees on the North Shore."
These lists, and all subsequent updates, should be
provided to the Planning Department in order to
confirm that the applicant's intent is being met."

10. To delete Condition 4.e. of the 2006 Permit.

SECTION 1. OWNER/SUBJECT PROPERTY.

1.1 Owner. HCI is the owner of the Subject Property ("Owner"), and has
authorized Max W. J. Graham, Jr. and Ian K. Jung of Belles Graham LLP to file this Application

pursuant to the Authorization attached as Exhibit "A".

1.2 Subject Property. The property which is the subject matter of this

Application ("Subject Property") is located in Hanalei, Kauai, Hawaii, and is described as follows:

a. Lot 17 as shown on Map 2 filed with the Assistant Registrar of the

Land Court of the State of Hawaii in Land Court Application No. 1160 containing an area of
3.985 acres and identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-5-009:008 ("Lot 17").

b. Royal Patent 6461, Land Commission Award No. 597 containing an

area of 7,822 square feet and identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-5-009:009 ("Parcel 9").
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1.3 Title. HCI's title to the Subject Property is shown on the Land Court
Certificate of Title attached as Exhibit "B-1" and the Deed for Parcel 9 attached as Exhibit "B-2".

14 Applicant. HCI, as the owner of Parcel 9, has entered into a Lease with
Na Pali Brewing for the lease of Parcel 9. Both parties are co-applicants in this Application, and
will be jointly referred to as the "Applicant”.

SECTION 2. LOCATION AND LAND USE DESIGNATIONS OF PROPERTY.

2.1 Location. The Subject Property is located in Hanalei, Island and
County of Kauai, State of Hawaii, as shown: on the Location Map attached as Exhibit "C-1"; and
on Tax Map 5-5-09 attached as Exhibit "C-2" (Lot 17 is shown colored in yellow and Parcel 9 is
shown colored in pink). The Subject Property is located in the ahupua'a of Hanalei, as shown on

the Ahupua'a Boundary Map attached as Exhibit "C-3".

2.2  Land Use Designations. The respective State Land Use Commission
("SLUC™"), Kaua'i General Plan, County of Kauai Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance ("CZO"), and
other relevant land use designations for the Subject Property are described as follows:
a. SLUC. The Subject Property is located within the SLUC Urban
District and as shown on the SLUC Map attached as Exhibit "C-4". The Subject Property has been
located in the Urban District since the inception of the SLUC Districts.

b. Kaua'i General Plan. The North Shore Land Use Map (Figure 5-7)

of the Kaua'i General Plan (2018), attached as Exhibit "C-5", appears to include the following
portions of Lot 17 and Parcel 9 in the Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation: all of the CZO
Neighborhood Commercial District portion of Lot 17; parts of the CZO Open District portions of

Lot 17 (along Kuhio Highway and along the mauka boundary); and the portion of Parcel 9 along
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Kuhio Highway. The remainder of the CZO Open District portion of Lot 17 and Parcel 9 are
located in the Natural Land Use Designation.

c. CZ0O. The western half of Lot 17 (containing approximately
102,086.6 square feet) is located in the CZO Neighborhood Commercial/Project Development
District ("Lot 17(CN)"). The eastern half of Lot 17 (containing approximately 71,500 square feet)
is located in the CZO Open District ("Lot 17(0)"). All of Parcel 9 is located in the CZO Open
District. The CZO Districts for the Subject Property are shown on Zoning Map ZM-HA700
attached as Exhibit "C-6".

d. Development Plan Area. The Subject Property is located within the

North Shore Development Plan Area (Ord. No. 239, as amended). As shown on Figure 7 of
the North Shore Development Plan Update ("NSDP Update") attached as Exhibit "C-7", the
Subject Property has been placed in the Project Development/Neighbor Commercial and
Open Recommended Zoning area of Hanalei Town.

e. Special Management Area. The Subject Property is located

within the Special Management Area ("SMA") of the County of Kauai as shown on the SMA Map
attached as Exhibit "C-8".

f. Shoreline/Shoreline Setback Area. None of the Subject Property is

located along the Shoreline or within the Shoreline Setback Area as defined in HRS Chapter 2054,
Part ITI, and CZO Article 27. The Subject Property is located approximately 1,400 feet from the
closest Shoreline.

g. Heritage Resources. The Subject Property is shown on the

North Shore Heritage Resource Map (Kaua'i General Plan, November 2018) attached as

Exhibit "C-9" as being located adjacent to a portion of Kuhio Highway which is designated as a
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Historic Belt Road. In addition, the following historic properties are located on Lot 17:

(1) The Hanalei Elementary School Building ("Hanalei
School Building") (STHP Number 50-30-03-09387) is located on Lot 17(CN) and is listed on both
the Hawaii and National Registers of Historic Places.

(ii)) A buried pond field deposit lo'i ("Lo'i") site (SIHP

Number 50-30-10-401) is located on Lot 17.

(iii) An existing drainage ditch/auwai ("Auwai") (SIHP
Number 50-30--10-400) crosses the Eastern Parking Area of Lot 17(0).

h. Sea Level Rise. Except for the Auwai located in the East Parking

Area of Lot 17(0), the Subject Property is not located in the Sea Level Rise Exposure Area
(3.2 ft. scenario) shown on the Pacific Islands Ocean Observing System Viewer Map attached as
Exhibit "C-10".

2.3  Workforce Housing Requirements. The Housing Policy for the County of

Kauai is not applicable in connection with use or zoning permits for commercial development and
no workforce housing assessment is triggered by this Application.

2.4 Existing Permits.

a. Master Permit. The Hanalei Commercial Center ("HCC"), which is
located on Lot 17, was approved by the Planning Commission on April 27, 1988 pursuant to the
Master Permit as set forth in the letter from the Planning Department dated April 28, 1988
attached as Exhibit "D-1". The Master Permit was subject to twenty-two (22) conditions of
approval ("Conditions") as shown on the Index of Permit Conditions attached as Exhibit "D-4"

("Permit Index"). The Master Permit allowed the following:
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(1) The renovation of two existing buildings on Lot 17(CN) to
be used for commercial purposes.

(ii) The relocation of two buildings (including the
Hanalei School Building) onto Lot 17(CN) to be used for commercial purposes.

(iii)  The construction of a new two-story building and two new

single-story buildings on Lot 17(CN), to be used for commercial purposes.

(iv)  The construction of a parking area on Lot 17(0), located on
the east side of the HCC ("East Parking Area"), and a parking area on Lot 17(CN), located on the
west side of the HCC ("West Parking Area"), together with Driveways, sidewalks, culverts and
related improvements.

(V) The renovation of an existing single-family residence
located within the East Parking Area on Lot 17(0) (the "Dawa House") to be used for
Employee Housing.

(vi)  The construction of a Sewage Treatment Plant ("STP") for
the HCC. [NOTE: The STP was later relocated to Lot 149 of Land Court Application No. 1160
("Lot 149"), located on the west side of Lot 17.]

(vil) A Land Coverage Variance allowing 25% Land Coverage
in Lot 17(0), provided that the Total Gross Floor Space in Lot 17(CN) did not exceed
25,000 square feet.

b. 2006 Amendment/2006 Permit. On November 14, 2006, the

Planning Commission approved an Amendment to the Master Permit as set forth in the letter from

the Planning Department dated November 15, 2006 attached as Exhibit "D-2" ("2006
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Amendment") and also approved the 2006 Permit for the HCC on Lot 17 as set forth in the letter
from the Planning Department dated November 15, 2006 attached as Exhibit "D-3". The 2006
Amendment and the 2006 Permit were subject to nine (9) new Conditions, as shown on the
Permit Index. The 2006 Amendment and 2006 Permit allowed the following:

(i) The construction of thirty-five (35) new unpaved parking

spaces in the East Parking Area on Lot 17(0O).

(i)  The construction of three (3) new single-family residences
(in addition to the existing Employee Housing unit on Lot 149 and the Dawa House) within the
East Parking Area of Lot 17(0) to be used for Employee Housing.

(iii)  The relocation within Lot 17(0) of an access road to the taro
lands mauka (north) of Lot 17 ("Taro Access").

(iv) The amendment of Conditions of the Master Permit
increasing the allowable Land Coverage in Lot 17(0) from 25% to 33%%.

C. Parcel 9 Permits. No permits have been issued for Parcel 9.

SECTION 3. PAST, EXISTING AND PROPOSED USES OF SUBJECT PROPERTY.

3.1 Existing Improvements And Uses.

a. Parcel 9. Parcel 9 has no improvements.
b. Lot 17. The following uses and improvements are located
on Lot 17:
6)) The HCC, which is composed of seven (7) buildings used

for commercial purposes and is located within Lot 17(CN).
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(i)  The East Parking Area, located within Lot 17(0), and the
West Parking Area, located within Lot 17(CN), both of which serve the HCC.

(iii)  Two new single-family residences, both of which are located
in Lot 17(0) and are used for Employee Housing. [Note: There is a third Employee Housing uml't
located on Lot 149.] The Employee House No. 1 has a footprint of approximately 1,266 square
feet. The Employee House No. 2 has a footprint of approximately 1,213 squate feet. [Note: the
Dawa House has been demolished and removed from Lot 17.]

3.2  Proposed New Improvements And Uses. The proposed development

("Project") includes the following:
a. Parcel 9.

6)) Craft Brewery. Na Pali Brewing proposes to construct a
new, two-story commercial building on Parcel 9 to be used for the manufacturing and sale of beer
(retail and wholesale). The Site Plan for the Craft Brewery Building is shown on Exhibit "E-1".
As shown on the Craft Brewery Floor Plan attached as Exhibit "E-2", the Lower Floor of the
Craft Brewery (containing 2,176 square feet) will be used primarily for manufacturing and office
facilities, although it will contain a small area for retail sales. The Upper Floor of the Craft Brewery
will contain a Tasting Room (872 square feet) and a covered Lanai (500 square feet) that will be
used for the retail sale of beer. The Craft Brewery will allow three (3) food trucks ("Food Trucks")
to park and operate on a rotating basis on the Parcel 9 premises. These Food Trucks will be allowed
to park on the mauka side of the Craft Brewery building. Craft Brewery customers will be allowed

to bring food from the Food Trucks into the Craft Brewery.
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The retail sale of the beer will be made directly to the
customers on premises. In addition, Na Pali Brewing intends to sell kegs of its beer to restaurants
or other customers for off-premises use.

(i)  Operation Schedule. The Craft Brewery will operate seven

(7) days a week. It will operate from 11:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. on Sunday through Thursday, and
from 11:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday.
(iii) Employees. The Craft Brewery will initially have three (3)

full time and three (3) part time employees.

(iv) Rar_kmg CZO Section 8-6.3(e)(3)(B) requires: one (1)
parking space for every three (3) employees; and one (1) parking space for each 200 square feet
of gross floor space used for retail purposes. Two (2) regular parking space and one (1) disabled
parking space will be provided within Parcel 9. The remainder will be provided on Lot 17(0).

(v) Waste Disposal. Na Pali Brewing will install an

Aerobic Treatment System ("ATS") connected to a Septic System and Leach Field located on
Parcel 9 to dispose of normal wastewater (collectively, the "Individual Wastewater System" or
"IWS"). The liquid wastes from the brewing process will not be deposited in the IWS but instead
will be collected and recycled twice a month by a licensed sewage disposal vehicle and recycled
or taken to a County treatment plant. The solid wastes from the brewing process will be delivered
to agricultural operations to be used as livestock feed. Na Pali Brewing intends to adopt strategies

that will allow it to recycle all of the waste materials generated by its brewing process.
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b. Lot 17.

(1) New Parking And Driveway. Parking for the HCC is

currently provided within the West Parking Area and in two areas within the East Parking Area
onLot 17(0). The portion of the East Parking Area located to the west of the Auwai
(the Existing Parking Area") contains approximately 45 parking spaces. The portion of the
East Parking Area located to the east of the Auwai (the "New Parking Area") currently contains
approximately 16 parking spaces. These 16 spaces will be removed and the New Parking Area
will be completely developed with 51 new geogrid parking spaces (for a net increase of 35 parking
spaces). HCI will need to construct a new driveway ("New Driveway") within the New Parking
Area to accommodate these changes. The New Parking Area and New Driveway are shown on
the HCC Site Plan attached as Exhibit "E-3" ("HCC Site Plan"). All of these improvements will
be located within Lot 17(0).

(i) New Sidewalk And Bridge. HCI intends to build a new

concrete sidewalk ("New Sidewalk") within Lot 17(0) which will extend the existing 4 foot wide
concrete sidewalk from its eastern end, along Kuhio Highway (within the East Parking Area) to
the new driveway entrance at the eastern Parcel 19 boundary, as shown on the HCC Site Plan.
A pedestrian bridge ("Pedestrian Bridge") will be constructed across the Auwai as shown on the
HCC Site Plan to connect the portions of the New Sidewalk located on either side of the Auwai.
Finally, a pedestrian walkway with porous pavers will be constructed along the new central parking
island in the East Parking Area, as shown on the HCC Site Plan. All of these improvements will

be located within Lot 17(O).
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(iii) Employee Housing. HCI does not intend to construct any

further Employee Housing on Lot 17. HCI will continue to maintain and use the existing
Employee House No. 1 and the Employee House No. 2 within Lot 17(0O) as Employee Housing.
[Note: There is a third Employee Housing unit located on Lot 149.]

3.3 Land Coverage.

a. Parcel 9. Parcel 9 is a kuleana lot that was a parcel of record existing
prior to September 1, 1972. Pursuant to CZO Section 8-9.2(a)(3), Parcel 9 is entitled to a
maximum of 3,000 square feet of land coverage. The total land coverage on Parcel 9 will not
exceed 3,000 square feet.

b. Lot 17(0). Pursuant to the 2006 Permit, Lot 17(0O) is entitled to a
maximum of 33%4% (23,833.33 square feet) of land coverage. The Applicant is requesting that
the permitted land coverage in Lot 17(0) be increased to 45% (32,175 square feet). The total land
coverage after construction of the proposed improvements within Lot 17(0O) will not exceed
32,175 square feet.

c. Lot 17(CN). Lot 17(CN) is entitled to a maximum of 80%
(81,668.8 square feet) of land coverage. The current land coverage for the CZO Commercial

District is 68,740 square feet, which is less than the permitted land coverage.

d. Lot 17/Total Land Coverage. The permitted land coverage for
Lot 17 under the CZO is 7,150 square feet in the CZO Open District and 81,669.28 square feet in
the CZO Commercial District, for a total of 88,819.28 square feet (51.17%). The Applicant is
requesting that the total permitted land coverage be increased to 113,844.28 square feet (65.58%).

The Project will comply with these restrictions.
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SECTION 4. DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AND IDENTIFICATION OF
SURROUNDING LANDS.

4.1  Adjacent Property. Immediately makai (north) of the Subject Property is

Kuhio Highway. Immediately mauka (south) of the Subject Property is a 719.102 acre parcel
known as Lot 4-A identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-4-003:001, which is owned by
Princeville Agricultural LLC. Lot 4-A is located in the SLUC Agricultural District and
Conservation District, and in the CZO Agriculture and Open Districts. It contains unimproved
lands and is used for pasture purposes and taro cultivation.

To the east of Parcel 9 is a 7,830 square feet lot (R. P. 6461/L. C. Aw. 597)
identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-5-009:010 which is owned by the Tasaka Trust. It is
located in the SLUC Urban District and the CZO Open District. It is improved with a single-
family residence. To the west of Lot 17 is a 0.824 acre parcel known as Lot 149 of Land Court
Application No. 1160 (Map 32) identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-5-009:022 which is
owned by HCL 1t is located in the SLUC Urban District and the CZO Agriculture District. It is
improved with: predominantly unpaved parking (used by the HCC); a Sewage Treatment Plant
("STP") (used by the HCC); and a single-family residence (used for Employee Housing in
conjunction with the HCC).

4.2 Natural Environment.

a. General Description. The Subject Property is composed of

level lands.

b. Soil Rating (Land Study Bureaw/UH). Because the Subject Property

is located in the SLUC Urban District, it is not listed in the Detailed Land Classification - Island

of Kauai prepared by the Land Study Bureau, University of Hawaii.
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c. Rainfall. The average annual rainfall in the area of the Subject
Property is 78 inches.

d. Botanical/Biological Resources. Lot 17 has been fully developed

with commercial improvements, parking, and introduced landscaping. Parcel 9 is unimproved and
is covered primarily with exotic grasses, hibiscus, ironwood trees, and coconut palm trees. There
are no known threatened or endangered biological species utilizing, or threatened or endangered
botanical species located on, the Subject Property.

e. Flood Zones. The Subject Property is located within Flood Zone AE
(EL.12/13) as ShOW;’l on the State Flood Hazard Assessment Map (which incorporates
Federal Insurance Rate Map 150002-055E) attached as Exhibit "C-11".

f. Wetlands. There are no wetlands on the Subject Property.

SECTION 5. PERMITS REQUESTED AND REQUIRED.

5.1  Requested Approval. The Applicant is requesting that the Master Permit

and the 2006 Permit be amended to allow the following:

a. To allow the development of a Craft Brewery on Parcel 9.

b. To increase the commercial parking in the East Parking Area
on Lot 17(0).

c. To allow a portion of the parking for the Craft Brewery to be located
on Lot 17(0).

d. To extend and amend the configuration of the Driveway within the

East Parking Area of Lot 17(0O).
€. To allow the development of a Sidewalk and Pedestrian Bridge

within the East Parking Area of Lot 17(0).
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f. To reduce the permitted Employee Housing in the East Parking Area
of Lot 17(0) to the two existing single-family residences, so that the total available Employee
Housing units for the Hanalei Commercial Center will be three (3) units.

g. To relocate the Taro Access within the East Parking Area
of Lot 17(0).

h. To increase the permitted land coverage in Lot 17(0) to 45%
(32,175 square feet) provided that:

Q) The land coverage in Lot 17(CN) does not exceed 80%;

(ii)  The total enclosed Commercial Floor Space (i.e., enclosed
floor space used exclusively for public commercial purposes) in Lot 17(CN) does not exceed
25,000 square feet;

(iii)  The total land coverages of both Employee Housing units
does not exceed 4,000 square feet; and

(iv) The improvements within Lot 17(0) ("Lot 17(O)
Improvements") are limited to: the two Employee Housing units; equipment sheds; parking spaces;
driveways; sidewalks; Taro Access; vehicular and pedestrian bridges; culverts; and signage,
railings and other accessory structures related to such improvements.

1. To amend Condition 4.d. of the 2006 Permit to read as follows:

"d.  Applicant shall maintain and update on a regular

basis a list of Hanalei Center [empleyee's] employees
(both current and retired) desiring the use of the

employee housing units. At a minimum, such a list
should identify the individual, family size, and
starting date of employment at Hanalei Center. At
the time of housing availability, all individuals
should be contacted and provided an opportunity to
confirm or deny their interest in the housing. [Length
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]
Only upon this list being exhausted can the applican
consider "other employees on the North Shore."
These lists, and all subsequent updates, should be
provided to the Planning Department in order to
confirm that the applicant's intent is being met."

J- To delete Condition 4.e. of the 2006 Permit.

5.2 Legal Requirements for Approval. The proposed uses and amendments will

require the following approvals by the Planning Commission:

a. For the uses and improvements within Lot 17, the Master Permit and
2006 Permit will need to be amended in accordance with Sections 1-6-16 and 1-12-9 of the
PC Rules.

b. For the Craft Brewery and other improvements within Parcel 9, the
Planning Commission will need to approve a new SMA Use Permit, CZO Use Permit, CZO Project
Development Use Permit, and a CZO Class IV Zoning Permit.

53 Official Notice/Commission Records. Pursuant to Rule 1-6-17(j) and (k) of

the PC Rules, the Applicant requests the Planning Commission to take Official Notice of, and to
incorporate into the record of this Application, all of the materials, records, files, exhibits,
documents, and evidence taken in the matter of the Master Permit and the 2006 Permit.

SECTION 6. IMPACTS OF PROJECT.

6.1 Botanical Resources and Wildlife. There are no known endangered

botanical resources or wildlife that will be affected by the Project. The Project will have no
significant impact on any endangered or protected wildlife or vegetation in the area of the

Subject Property.
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6.2  Historical Resources. There are three (3) identified Historic Properties

located on Lot 17: the Hanalei School building; remnants of a subsurface taro pond field ("Lo'i
Field") (SIHP 50-30-10-401); and a portion of an irrigation ditch ("Auwai") (SIHP 50-30-10-400).
As a condition of approval of the Master Permit, the Applicant had Joseph Kennedy of
Archaeological Consultants of Hawaii Inc. prepare an Archaeological Report On Data Recovery
And Additional Subsurface Testing (May 1991). A copy of the Archaeological Report is attached
as Exhibit "F-1". The Archaeological Report was approved and accepted by the State Historic
Preservation Division ("SHPD"), as reflected in the series of letters from SHPD attached as
Exhibits "F-2" through "F-9" ("SHPD Approval Letters").

Consistent with the Archaeological Report, SHPD determined that the Lo'i
Field and Auwai were significant under what is now HAR Section 13-284-6(b)(4) Criterior "d" as
likely to yield information important for research on prehistory or history. To accomplish the data
recovery, a series of seventeen (17) trenches were dug between the Auwai on the east and the
western boundary of Lot 17. This subsurface testing and data recovery failed to uncover evidence
of significant pre-historic or early historic use of the site.

Following is an analysis of the Historic Preservation Review Process as it
applies to the Project:

a. Identification/Inventory [HAR Section 13-284-3(b)(1)]. The

Archaeological Report identified the Auwai and Lo'i Field as Historic Properties. The Auwai is
located within the Project Area, and the Lo'i Field would probably extend into the Project Area as
well. [Note: No trenches were dug in the Project Area.] Other than these two (2) items, there are

no other Historic Properties visible on the surface of the Project Area.
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b. Evaluation of Significance [HAR Section 13-284-3(b)(2)]. The

Auwai and Lo'i Field were previously determined to have significance under HAR
Section 13-284-6(b)(4) Criterior "d" as likely to yield information important for research on
prehistory or history.

c. Effect Determination [HAR Sections 13-284-3(b)(3) and 13-284-7].

The only Historic Properties within the Property that could be affected by the Project are the
Hanalei School building, the Lo'i Field, and the Auwai. No other Historic Properties have been
identified as being present within the Project Area.

(1) Hanalei School Building. The Hanalei School building is

not located within the Project Area. It is located approximately 200 feet to the west of the closest
boundary of the Project Area and approximately 500 feet from the proposed Craft Brewery
building on Parcel 9. It is separated from the Project Area by the existing eastern parking area.
As a result, because the Project will have no physical or visual impact on the Hanalei School
building, a finding of "no historic properties affected" pursuant to HAR Section 13-284-7 would
be appropriate for the Project's impact on the Hanalei School building in particular and the
Project Area in general (other than the Lo'i Field and Auwai).

(ii)) Lo'i Field/Auwai. The Auwai is located within the

Project Area and will be impacted by the construction of the pedestrian bridge. The Lo'i Field
would be expected to extend within the Project Area, to be of the same character as the portion
examined on the western side of Lot 17, and to be impacted in a similar manner by the Project.
Both the Lo'i Field and Auwai have been the subject of data recovery as described in the

Archaeological Report, and no further information content would be expected from either site.
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d. Mitigation Commitment [HAR  Sections  13-284-3(b)(4)

and 13-284-8]. In response to the impacts on the Lo'i Field and the Auwai, the Applicant agreed
to have the Archaeological Report prepared in compliance with HAR Section 13-284-8.

e. Mitigation Plan [HAR Sections 13-284-3(b)(5) and 13-284-8].

Consistent with its commitment, the Applicant prepared and submitted the Archaeological Report
to SHPD. The Archaeological Report was approved by SHPD as set forth in the SHPD Approval

Letters.

f Verification of Completion [HAR Sections 13-284-3(b)(6) and

13-284-9]. The mitigation work described in the Archaeological Report was completed to the
satisfaction of SHPD as set forth in the SHPD Approval Letters.

g. Summary of Project's Completion of State Historic Preservation

Review Process. Based upon the above and SHPD's acceptance of the Archaeological Report, the

Applicant requests that the Planning Commission determine the following:
(1) That the Applicant has completed in full Paragraphs 6.3.a.

through e., above, pursuant to HAR Section 13-284-3(b)(1)-(5);

(ii)  That the Applicant has completed Paragraph 6.3.f., above,
pursuant to HAR Section 13-284-3(b)(5)-(6) and Section 13-284-9(d), for all identified historic
properties;

(iii)  That pursuant to HRS Section 6E-42, SHPD has been
allowed an opportunity to review and comment on the effect of the proposed Project on the historic

properties and burial sites (consistent with HRS Section 6E-43); and

225-
{W-/DOCS/26077/4/W0160850.DOCX }



(iv)  That the Applicant has met the requirements as set forth in
HRS Section 6E-42 and HAR Section 13-284-3(b)(1)-(5).
Finally, in the event of inadvertent historic site or burial discovery, the
Applicant will immediately contact SHPD and the Planning Department and follow the applicable
provisions of HAR Chapters 13-280 and 13-300.

6.3  Air Quality/Noise. The Project will have little or no impact on the air

quality and ambient noise levels in the area. Air quality and ambient noise levels may be affected
at a very minimal level during future activities associated with the construction of the
Craft Brewery and the Lot 17(0) Improvements. All vehicles or equipment used by the Applicant
during construction will be properly muffled, housed and maintained to reduce any noise impacts
or emission impacts. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and State of Hawaii air quality
standards will not be exceeded.

6.4 Flooding and Drainage. The Subject Property is situated within

Flood Zone AE (El. 12/13), as shown on the State Flood Hazard Assessment map (which
incorporates the data shown on Federal Insurance Rate Map 150002-055E). The Project will meet
all of the requirements of the Flood Plain Management Ordinance of the County of Kauai, as
contained in Chapter 15, Article 1, of the Kauai County Code, 1987. The Project will have no
negative impact on flooding on or around the Subject Property. All drainage resulting from
construction activities, from road use, and from the increase in land coverage will be retained on
site or directed into the Auwai and subject to best management practices. No additional drainage
will be allowed to significantly or negatively impact surrounding properties, including the

mauka taro lands.
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6.5  Utilities.

a. Potable Water. The Project will obtain potable water from the
existing Department of Water ("DOW") water meters that serve the Subject Property. Existing
DOW facilities in the Hanalei area are sufficient to provide the potable water and fire flow
requirements for the Project.

b. Electric/Communications. The Project will obtain electric service

from Kauai Island Utility Cooperative, and communication services from Oceanic Time Warner
Cable, LLC (dba Spectrum) and/or Hawaiian Telcom, Inc. from existing electric and
communications facilities presently serving the Subject Property. These facilities are presently
adequate to provide the demand for such services that will be generated by the proposed Project.

6.6  Wastewater Treatment and Disposal. Wastewater generated by the HCC is

collected and routed to the STP on Lot 149 via the existing sewer facilities servicing the
Subject Property.  The wastewater generated on Parcel 9 will be transmitted to an
Aerobic Treatment System connected to a Septic Tank and Leach Field system on Parcel 9, as

described in Section 3.2a.(v).

6.7  Solid Waste Disposal. Normal solid waste collection and disposal will be
provided by HCI as part of its operation of the HCC and/or by Na Pali Brewing by private means.
Normal solid waste will be taken to the County's Transfer Stations for disposal in the County
Landfill. The liquid and solid wastes from the brewing process on Parcel 9 will be disposed of as
described in Section 3.2.a.(v.).

6.8  Governmental Services. The Project will have the following impacts on

governmental services:
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a. Fire and Police Services. Fire services are available from the

Princeville Fire Station, which is located approximately 2.25 miles from the Subject Property.
Police services are available from the Princeville Police Sub-Station, which is located
approximately 2.25 miles from the Subject Property. The Project will not significantly increase
the need for existing fire and police services.

b. Schools. The closest schools are Hanalei Elementary School located
in Hanalei, Kilauea Elementary School located in Kilauea, Kapaa Middle School located in
Kapaa, and Kapaa High School located in Kapaa. The Project will not generate any significant
increase in enrollment.

6.9  Economics. The Project will have the following economic impacts:

a. Jobs. The Project will create: 10 to 20 jobs on a temporary basis
during the period of construction; six (6) permanent jobs (3 full time/3 part time) associated with
the Craft Brewery operation; and two (2) to four (4) permanent/part-time jobs associated with the
Food Trucks.

b. Housing. The Project will not result in the need for additional
worker housing. The Craft Brewery employees and all contractors and their employees will be
Kauai residents who are already living on Kauai. HCI will continue to provide three (3) Employee
Housing units for use by HCC employees.

6.10 Population. The Project will not result in any significant increase
in population.

6.11  Traffic Circulation. The major road which services the Subject Property is

Kuhio Highway (a State highway). The Project will not significantly increase traffic on this road.
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6.12  Heritage Resources. As shown on the North Shore Heritage Resource Map

(Figure 5-14 of the Kauai General Plan), the Project is located along Kuhio Highway, which is
designated as a Historic Belt Road. In addition, the following historic properties are located on
Lot 17: the Hanalei School Building (SIHP Number 50-30-03-09387), which is located on
Lot 17(CN), and which is listed on both the Hawaii and National Registers of Historic Places; the
Lo'i, which is a buried pond field deposit lo'i site (STHP Number 50-30-10-401), and which is located
throughout Lot 17; and the Auwai, which is an existing drainage ditch (STHP Number 50-30-10-400),
and which is located within Lot 17(0).

The primary public view of the Project will be from Kuhio Highway
(the "Vantage Point"). The Project will be designed to blend harmoniously into the surrounding
environment. Building materials and exterior colors will be compatible with the surrounding
environment. The Project will be landscaped as necessary so as to minimize visual impacts. The
Lot 17(0) Improvements will be located at ground level and will not interfere with views from
Kuhio Highway in a mauka direction. Numerous other buildings and structures in the area are visible
from the Vantage Point. The proposed Project will be no more intrusive than any of these other visible
structures. As discussed in Section 6.2, the Project will have no significant effects on any historic
sites located on the Subject Property.

SECTION 7. SLUC CONSIDERATIONS/STATE PLAN.

7.1 SLUC Urban District. The Subject Property is located within the SLUC

Urban District. Permitted uses in the SLUC Urban District are set forth in HRS Section 205-2(b),
which provides as follows:
"(b)  Urban districts shall include activities or uses

as provided by ordinances or regulations of the county within
which the urban district is situated."
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7.2 Project's Compliance with SLUC Urban District Standards. The use of

the Subject Property for commercial purposes is recognized as a permissible use under HRS
Section 205-2(b).

7.3 State Planning Act. The State Planning Act contains Objectives and Policies

to assist the State in attaining its long-range planning Goals. Included in the Objectives and Policies

are the following:

"a. §226-6 Objectives and policies for the economy--in
general. (@) Planning for the State's economy in general shall be
directed toward achievement of the following objectives:

(1) Increased and diversified employment
opportunities to achieve full employment, increased income and job
choice, and improved living standards for Hawaii's people, while at
the same time stimulating the development and expansion of
economic activities capitalizing on defense, dual-use, and science and
technology assets, particularly on the neighbor islands where
employment opportunities may be limited.

(2) A steadily growing and diversified economic
base that is not overly dependent on a few industries, and includes the
development and expansion of industries on the neighbor islands.

(b) To achieve the general economic objectives,. it
shall be the policy of this State to:

(1) Promote and encourage entrepreneurship
within Hawaii by residents and nonresidents of the State.

(2) Expand Hawaii's national and international
marketing, communication, and organizational ties, to increase the
State's capacity to adjust to and capitalize upon economic changes and
opportunities occurring outside the State.

(3) Promote Hawaii as an attractive market for
environmentally and socially sound investment activities that benefit
Hawaii's people.

(4) Transform and maintain Hawaii as a place
that welcomes and facilitates innovative activity that may lead to
commercial opportunities.

(5) Promote innovative activity that may pose
initial risks, but ultimately contribute to the economy of Hawaii.

(6) Seek broader outlets for new or expanded
Hawaii business investments.
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(7) Expand existing markets and penetrate new
markets for Hawaii's products and services.

(8) Assure that the basic economic needs of
Hawaii's people are maintained in the event of disruptions in overseas
transportation.

(9) Strive to achieve a level of construction
activity responsive to, and consistent with, state growth objectives.

(10) Encourage the formation of cooperatives and
other favorable marketing arrangements at the local or regional level
to assist Hawaii's small scale producers, manufacturers, and
distributors.

(11) Encourage labor-intensive activities that are
economically satisfying and which offer opportunities for upward
mobility.

(12) Encourage innovative activities that may not
be labor-intensive, but may otherwise contribute to the economy of
Hawaii.

(13) Foster greater cooperation and coordination
between the government and private sectors in developing Hawaii's
employment and economic growth opportunities.

(14) Stimulate the development and expansion of
economic activities which will benefit areas with substantial or
expected employment problems.

(15) Maintain acceptable working conditions and
standards for Hawaii's workers.

(16) Provide equal employment opportunities for
all segments of Hawaii's population through affirmative action and
nondiscrimination measures.

(17) Stimulate the development and expansion of
economic activities capitalizing on defense, dual-use, and science and
technology assets, particularly on the neighbor island where
employment opportunities may be limited.

(18) Encourage businesses that have favorable
financial multiplier effects within Hawaii's economy, particularly with
respect to emerging industries in science and technology.

(19) Promote and protect intangible resources in
Hawaii, such as scenic beauty and the aloha spirit, which are vital to a
healthy economy.

(20) Increase effective communication between
the educational community and the private sector to develop relevant
curricula and training programs to meet future employment needs in
general, and requirements of new or innovative potential growth
industries in particular.

(21) Foster a business climate in Hawaii--
including attitudes, tax and regulatory policies, and financial and
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technical assistance programs--that is conducive to the expansion of
existing enterprises and the creation and attraction of new business and
industry.

b. §226-8 Objective and policies for the economy--
visitor industry. (a) Planning for the State's economy with regard o
the visitor industry shall be directed towards the achievement of the
objective of a visitor industry that constitutes a major component of
steady growth for Hawaii's economy.
(b)  To achieve the visitor industry objective, it shall be
the policy of this State to:

(1) Support and assist in the promotion of
Hawaii's visitor attractions and facilities.

(2) Ensure that visitor industry activities are in
keeping with the social, economic, and physical needs and aspirations
of Hawaii's people.

(3) Improve the quality of existing visitor
destination areas by utilizing Hawaii's strengths in science and
technology.

(4) Encourage cooperation and coordination
between the government and private sectors in developing and
maintaining well-designed, adequately serviced visitor industry and
related developments which are sensitive to neighboring communities
and activities.

(5) Develop the industry in a manner that will
continue to provide new job opportunities and steady employment for
Hawaii's people.

(6) Provide opportunities for Hawaii's people to
obtain job training and education that will allow for upward mobility
within the visitor industry.

(7) Foster arecognition of the contribution of the
visitor industry to Hawaii's economy and the need to perpetuate the
aloha spirit.

(8) Foster an understanding by visitors of the
aloha spirit and of the unique and sensitive character of Hawaii's
cultures and values.

c. §226-19 Objectives and policies for socio-cultural
advancement--housing. (a) Planning for the State's socio-cultural
advancement with regard to housing shall be directed toward the
achievement of the following objectives:

(1) Greater opportunities for Hawaii's people to
secure reasonably priced, safe, sanitary, and livable homes, located in
suitable environments that satisfactorily accommodate the needs and
desires of families and individuals, through collaboration and
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cooperation between government and nonprofit and for-profit
developers to ensure that more rental and for sale affordable housing
is made available to extremely low-, very low-, lower-, moderate-, and
above moderate-income segments of Hawaii's population.

(2) The orderly development residential areas
sensitive to community needs and other land uses.

(3) The development and provision of
affordable rental housing by the State to meet the housing needs of

Hawaii's people.
() To achieve the housing objectives, it shall be the
policy of this State to:

(1) Effectively accommodate the housing needs
of Hawaii's people.

(2) Stimulate and promote feasible approaches
that increase affordable rental and for sale housing choices for
extremely low-, very low-, lower-, moderate-, and above moderate-
income households.

(3) Increase homeownership and rental
opportunities and choices in terms of quality, location, cost, densities,
style, and size of housing.

(4) Promote appropriate improvement,
rehabilitation, and maintenance of existing rental and for sale housing
units and residential areas.

(5) Promote design and location of housing
developments taking into account the physical setting, accessibility to
public facilities and services, and other concerns of existing
communities and surrounding areas.

(6) Facilitate the use of available vacant,
developable, and underutilized urban lands for housing.

(7) TFoster a variety of lifestyles traditional to
Hawaii through the design and maintenance of neighborhoods that
reflect the culture and values of community.

(8) Promote research and development of
methods to reduce the cost of housing construction in Hawaii."

74  Compliance with State Plan. The proposed Project will comply with the

State Planning Act as follows:

a. Economy in General. The Project will: provide increased and

diversified employment opportunities for Kaua'i residents; promote entrepreneurship by

Kaua'i residents; and expand markets for Kaua'i products.
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b. Visitor Industry. The Project will enhance the mix of commercial

activities that can be used by Kaua'i residents as well as visitors. As such, it will support visitor
attractions in the Hanalei Town area and contribute to job opportunities and employment for the
Kaua'i community.

c. Housing. The HCC will continue for the foreseeable future to
maintain the three (3) Employee Housing units to provide greater opportunities on Kaua'i for safe,
sanitary and livable homes for Kaua'i residents employed in the HCC.

SECTION 8. GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATIONS.

8.1  Kaua'i General Plan Land Use Designation. The North Shore Land Use Map

(Figure 5-7) of the Kaua'i General Plan appears to include the following portions of Lot 17 and
Parcel 9 in the Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation: all of Lot 17(CN); parts of Lot 17(0)
(along Kuhio Highway and along the mauka boundary); and the portion of Parcel 9 along Kuhio
Highway. The remainder of Lot 17(0) and Parcel 9 are located in the Natural Land Use
Designation. |

a. Neighborhood Center Designation. Land uses in the Neighborhood

Center Designation are described in Section 2.2.4 of the General Plan as follows:
"4, Neighborhood Center

Neighborhood Center is a new designation focused
on historic town cores and corresponds to existing or
future areas appropriate for accommodating infill
development and growth. Centers consist of mixed-
use core with a cluster of retail and service activity,
civic spaces and primary destinations, along with
residential uses. This core area can support an
interconnected network of streets and blocks that
encourage multimodal transportation  access.
Centers typically comprise a mix of detached and
attached buildings between 1-5 stories in height.
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Changes from the Previous General Plan Land
Use Map

Neighborhood Center is a new designation. It
updates the previous Town Center boundary and
replaces Urban Center and Residential Community
in some areas. The designation works with
Neighborhood General to indicate existing and new
mixed use centers where growth and revitalization
should be prioritized."

b. Natural Designation. Land uses in the Natural Designation are

described in Section 2.2.1 of the General Plan as follows:
"1. Natural

Areas designated as Natural have either limited
development capacity or are not suitable for
development due to topography, hazards
vulnerability, sensitive resources, and other
constraints. They include all State Land Use
Conservation District lands and some County Open
Zoning District land. These areas include the many
ridges, waterfalls, river wvalleys, and rugged
coastlines of the island that comprise its open spaces
and scenic views. Very few residential uses are
found in the Natural designation and are generally
not encouraged.

Changes from the Previous General Plan Land Use Map
Natural replaces the Open Designation in the
previous General Plan. The Open Designation
included undeveloped natural areas as well as some

areas that are vegetated but developed and actively
managed, such as golf courses."

8.2 Goals. The overall Goals contained in Section 1.3 of the Kaua'i General Plan,
and the Project's compliance therewith, are as follows:

a. Goal 1 — A Sustainable Island. The Project is an example of

responsible growth in an area designated for commercial and open space uses by the general public.
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b. Goal 2 — A Unique and Beautiful Place. The Project will compliment

the natural, cultural, social and built environmental assets of the Hanalei Town area and Community.
It will provide commercial opportunities and uses that are compatible with similar uses in the area.

c. Goal 3 — A Healthy and Resilient People. The Project will have

minimal visual impacts and will have no significant negative impacts on the Historic Sites or
Hawaiian cultural practices. It will not be located close enough to the shoreline to be affected by sea
level rise.

d. Goal 4 — An Equitable Place, with Opportunity for All. The Project

will support and enhance economic and business opportunities, jobs, and housing opportunities on
Kaua'i.

8.3  Policies. The Project will comply with the Policies contained in Section 1.4
of the Kaua'i General Plan as follows:

a. Manage Growth to Preserve Rural Character. The Project will not

detract from the rural characteristics of Kaua'i. It will provide appropriate opportunities for
commercial activities within the designated growth boundaries of the Hanalei Town area.

b. Provide Local Housing. The Project will not have any negative effects

on affordable housing opportunities for Kaua'i residents. It will be part of the HCC, which maintains
three (3) Employee Housing units for HCC employees.

c. Recognize the Identity of Kaua'i's Individual Towns and Districts.

The Project will provide commercial opportunities that are consistent with the planning goals for the

Hanalei Town area.
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d. Design Healthy and Complete Neighborhoods. The Project will be a

compliment to healthy and complete neighborhoods by providing close, walkable access to
commercial activities in the Hanalei Town area.

e. Make Strategic Infrastructure Investments. The HCC has provided the

necessary infrastructure (including a STP, Employee Housing, improvements to Kuhio Highway,

and sidewalk) to offset any negative impacts it may have on public facilities.

£ Reduce the Cost of Living. The Project will help provide affordable
commercial activities for the Hanalei Town community.

g. Build a Balanced Transportation System. The Project will not

substantially increase traffic or congestion problems. It will provide additional and much needed
parking for Hanalei Town.

h. Protect Kaua'i's Scenic Beauty. The Project will have a positive

influence on the visual resources in Hanalei. The Lot 17(O) Improvements will be located for the
most part at ground level and will not detract from views from Kuhio Highway looking toward the
mountains (mauka).

i. Uphold Kaua'i as a Unique Visitor Destination. The Project will

provide commercial opportunities for visitors, including the unique Craft Brewery.

] Help Business Thrive. The Project will provide commercial

opportunities for residents and visitors, who in turn will generate increased revenues for business and
commercial activities in the Hanalei Town area.

k. Help Agricultural Lands Be Productive. The Project will have no

negative impact on surrounding agricultural uses. It will help to preserve agricultural lands by
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locating commercial uses in appropriately designated areas. As part of the Project, a Taro Access will
continue to be provided for the mauka agricultural lands.

1. Protect Our Watersheds. The Project will have no negative impacts

on the watershed areas.

m. Complete Kaua'i's Shift to Clean Energy. The Project will have no

negative impact on Kaua'i's shift to clean sources of energy.

n. Prepare for Climate Change. Thé Project is not located on or along

the shoreline and will not be subject to sea level rise.

0. Respect Native Hawaiian Rights and Wahi Pana. As discussed in

Section 6.2 and Section 14, the Project will have no substantial impacts on any of the Historic Sites,
Hawaiian traditional and cultural practices, or access to streams, shorelines, or areas associated with
Hawaiian religious, traditional or cultural practices.

p- Protect Access to Kaua'i's Treasured Places. The Project will have no

impact on the public's access to streams, the shoreline, trails, recreational areas, or places associated
with Hawaiian religious, cultural, or traditional practices.

q. Nurture Our Keiki. The Project will help provide commercial

opportunities that will allow Kaua''s young people to grow and flourish.

. Honor Our Kipuna. The Project will provide commercial

opportunities for the Kapuna.

5. Communicate with Aloha. The scheduling of this Application before

the Planning Commission will allow the public to participate in the planning and decision-making

process for the Project.
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8.4  Objectives & Actions by Sectors. The ten (10) Sectors contained in

Section 3.0 of the Kaua'i General Plan (which represent the areas that must be considered in policy
implementation), and the Project's compliance therewith, are as follows:

a. The Watershed. Other than the Auwai, the Project is not located in or
near any watershed, on the shoreline, or near any streams. The Project will have no significant
negative impact on the flow of water through the Auwai. As such, it will have no significant negative
impacts on the natural, historic, cultural, or environmental qualities of, or resources within, the
Watershed areas, or access thereto.

b. Housing. The Project will provide commercial opportunities
compatible with residential uses and needs in the Hanalei Town area. It is appropriately located in an
"in-fill" area designated for commercial uses. It will be part of the HCC, which at present maintains
three (3) Employee Housing units for HCC employees.

C. Transportation. The Project will not result in a substantial increase in
traffic and will have no significant negative impact on Kaua'i's transportation infrastructure. It is
within walking distance of visitor amenities, commercial activities, recreation resources, and public
facilities.

d. Infrastructure & Services. The Project will be served by existing

public (water/electric/cable) systems. As described in Section 3.2.a.(v.), normal wastewater will be
disposed of on-site and liquid and solid waste from the brewing process will be taken off-site by
Na Pali Brewing.

€. Shared Spaces. The Project will not overburden the use and

enjoyment of public resources and Shared Spaces in the Hanalei Town area.
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f. Economy. The Project will enhance and promote resident and visitor
related uses and expenditures in the Hanalei Town area in support of Kaua'i's economy.

g. Heritage Resources. As discussed in Section 6.2 and Section 14, the

Project will have no substantial visual impacts on surrounding lands, and no substantial impacts on
the Historic Sites, on Hawaiian cultural or traditional practices, or on access to streams, shorelines,
areas associated with Hawaiian cultural or traditional practices, recreational areas or other special
places. The Project will not negatively impact any special features or resources that are shown on the
North Shore Heritage Resource Map (Kaua'i General Plan Figure 5-14). The Lot 17(O)
Improvements will be located for the most part at ground level and will not detract from views from
Kuhio Highway looking toward the mountains (mauka).

h. Energy Sustainability. The Project will have no negative impacts on

Kaua'i's energy sustainability goals. It will incorporate energy efficient features in its development
where possible.

1. Public Safety & Hazards Resiliency. The Project is not located near

the shoreline and will not be subject to sea level rise.

j. Opportunity & Health For All. The Project will promote knowledge

of and access to Historic Sites, Hawaiian cultural or traditional practices, and public resources.

SECTION 9. CZO DISTRICT CONSIDERATIONS.

9.1 CZO Neighborhood Commercial District. A portion of the Subject Property

(Lot 17(CN)) is located in the CZO Neighborhood Commercial District (with a Project Development
overlay). The purposes of the CZO Neighborhood Commercial District are set forth in CZO Axticle 6,

which provides in relevant part as follows:
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"Sec. 8-6.1 Purpose.

(a) To designate areas suitable for commercial and
public or private business activities distributed so as to supply
goods and services to the public in a convenient and efficient
manner.

(b)  To relate commercial and business activities to
established or projected transport, utility and community
patterns so that they may contribute to the general health,
safety and welfare of the public.

(c) To assure that commercial and business
development and uses will not detract from the environmental
qualities of the surrounding areas.

Sec. 8-6.2 Types Of Commercial Districts.

(b)  Neighborhood Commercial shall include uses
and services which are frequently required and utilized by
residents of all ages and which can be compatibly located in
close proximity to residential districts." '

9.2 Permitted Uses And Structures In CZ0O Neighborhood Commercial District.

CZO Section 2.4(i) contains the Uses And Structures which are permitted in the CZO Neighborhood
Commercial District, which include the following:
"(1)  Accessory uses and structures

(10)  Retail shops and stores
(11)  Restaurants and food ser\'{ices

93 Uses And Structures Permitted In CZ0 Neighborhood Commercial District

With A Use Permit. CZO Section 2.4(k) contains the Uses and Structures which are permitted with

a Use Permit within the CZO Neighborhood Commercial District, which include the following:
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(7) Food processing and packaging
®) Light manufacturing

(11)  Project development in accordance with Article 10 of
this Chapter

(15)  Any other use or structure which the Planning Director
finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this
Section and appropriate to the District"

9.4 Compliance With CZO Neighborhood Commercial District Standards. The

use of the Subject Property for the Craft Brewery operation, the Lot 17(0) Improvements, and other
commercial purpose's is consistent with CZO Sections 2.4(i) and (j), the Master Permit, and the
2006 Permit.

9.5  CZO Open District. The eastern portion of the Subject Property (including

Lot 17(0O) and Parcel 9) is located within the CZO Open District. The purposes of the CZO Open
District are set forth in CZO Article 9, which provides in relevant part as follows:
"Sec.8-9.1  Purpose.

The Open District is established and regulated to create
and maintain an adequate and functional amount of
predominantly open land to provide for the recreational and
aesthetic needs of the community or to provide for the
effective functioning of land, air, water, plant and animal
systems or communities.

(@) To preserve, maintain or improve the essential
characteristics of land and water areas that are:

¢)) of significant value to the public as
scenic or recreational sources;

2) important to the overall structure and
organization of urban areas and which provide accessible and
usable open areas for recreational and aesthetic purposes;

(3) necessary to insulate or buffer the
public and places of residence from undesirable environmental
factors caused by, or related to, particular uses such as noise,
dust, and visually offensive elements.
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(b) To preserve, maintain or improve the essential
functions of physical and ecological systems, forms or forces
which significantly affect the general health, safety and
welfare.

() To define and regulate use and development
within areas which may be potentially hazardous.

(d) To include areas indicated on the County
General Plan as open or as parks."

9.6  Permitted Uses And Structures In CZO Open District. CZO Section 2.4(s)

contains the Uses and Structures permitted in the CZO Open District, which include the following:
"(1)  Accessory uses and structures”

97 Uses And Structures Permitted In CZO Open District With A Use Permit.

CZO Section 8-2.4(t) contains the Uses And Structures Permitted With A Use Permit within the CZO
Open District, which includes the following:
"(4) Home business
(14)  Any other use or structure which the Planning Director
finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this

Section and appropriate to the District"

9.8 Standards For Construction And Use Within An Open District. CZO

Section 8-9.2 regulates land coverage in the CZO Open District and provides as follows:
"(@ Land Coverage:
3) At least three thousand (3,000) square feet of

land coverage shall be permissible on any parcel of record
existing prior to or on September 1, 1972."

9.9  Compliance With CZO Open District Standards. The Project is a use and

structure permitted with a Use Permit within the CZO Open District pursuant to CZO
Section 8-2.4(t)(14). As discussed in Section 12, the Project will comply with the CZO Use Permit
Standards. The Land Coverage will not exceed: 3,000 square feet on Parcel 9; or the requested
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45% coverage on Lot 17(0). The Project itself will have no significant impact on the surrounding
environment. The Lot 17(0) Improvements will be located for the most part at ground level and will
not detract from views from Kuhio Highway looking toward the mountains (mauka). As such, the
Project complies with CZO Section 8-9.1 in that it: will help to preserve, maintain and improve the
natural characteristics of the area; will allow the area to remain predominantly free of development;
and will be incidental to the use and open character of the surrounding lands.

SECTION 10. DEVELOPMENT PLAN CONSIDERATIONS.

10.1 Community Plan Area. The Subject Property is located in the North Shore

geographic area and is subject to the provisions of the North Shore Development Plan Ordinance
as set forth in Title IV, Chapter 10, Article 2 of the Kauai County Code, 1987 ("KCC").

10.2 Land Use. The desired long-range land use pattern for the Hanalei Town
Area is shown on the Recommended Zoning Map attached as Figure 7 of the North Shore
Development Plan Update. The current zoning of the Subject Property is the same as the
Recommended Zoning.

10.3 Development Plan Goals and Objectives. The goals and objectives of the

North Shore Development Plan Update, as adopted by the North Shore Development Plan

Ordinance, include the following:

Goal A: To preserve the unique natural beauty of the North Shore
Planning Area.

Goal B: To preserve the special rural charm of the North Shore
Planning Area.

Goal C: To provide for the safety and welfare of the people of their
property of the North Shore Planning Area.

Goal D: To provide for economic development of the North Shore
Planning Area.
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Goal E: To preserve the wildlife and flora and the North Shore,
recognizing man's dependence upon this preservation for his
own health and welfare.

Goal F: To insure the preservation of historic-archaeological sites in
the North Shore Planning Area.
Goal G: To create a development for evolutionary growth that

depends upon a planning process whereby conflicts can be
resolved through the establishment of priorities and
community participation.

Goal H: To provide for recreational opportunities that are compatible
with unique qualities and natural features of the North Shore.

10.4 Compliance with Development Plan Standards. The proposed use of the

Subject Property will not conflict with any of the Goals contained in the North Shore Development
Plan. The design, layout and outside appearance of the Project is and will be compatible with the
natural beauty of the area. As such, the proposed use will not conflict with Goals A or B. The
proposed use will provide commercial economic opportunity for Kaua'i residents and as such will
promote Goal D. The proposed use will have no significant negative impact on the public safety
or welfare, on any endangered species of plants or animals, on archaeologic or historic sites, or on
recreational opportunities on or around the Subject Property. As such, it will not conflict with
Goals C, E, F orH. The process of filing this Application is consistent with the purposes
of Goal G.

SECTION 11. SMA CONSIDERATIONS.

11.1  Recreational Resources. There are no public recreational opportunities

taking place on the Subject Property other than those associated with the commercial aspects of
the HCC. Therefore, the proposed Project will not have any negative impact on any public
recreational opportunities located on the Subject Property. The construction of the Project will not
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overburden the use of, nor restrict access to, the shoreline in the vicinity of the Subject Property.
The Project will have no direct impact on any County Beach Parks in the Hanalei Town area and
will not overburden their facilities.

11.2 Historic Resources. As discussed in Section 6.2, above, the proposed

Project will not have any significant impact on historic, cultural or archaeological resources
located on or near the Subject Property. The Applicant will protect and preserve any historic
resources that may be found as a result of the development of the proposed Project.

11.3  Scenic and Open Space Resources. The proposed Project will not have any

significant impacts on the scenic and open space resources on and around the Subject Property.
The Project will be compatible with and blend into the surrounding area. The Project will not
interfere with any views to or along the shoreline. The public views of the Project will be primarily
from locations on Kuhio Highway. The Applicant will use landscaping to provide reasonable
mitigation to the visual impacts the Project may have on the scenic quality of the Subject Property,
the Hanalei Town area, and on views from surrounding properties. The Lot 17(0) Improvements
will be located for the most part at ground level and will not detract from views from Kuhio Highway
looking toward the mountains (mauka).

11.4 Coastal Ecosystems. The Subject Property, being located in Hanalei

Valley, is part of the coastal ecosystem of the Hanalei Town area. As discussed in Section 6.4, the
proposed Project will have no significant impact on this ecosystem. The Project will be
constructed and maintained so that any erosion or increased runoff will be maintained on site, or
directed into the Auwai. No aspect of the Project will endanger the coastal ecosystem or have any

negative impacts on it.
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11.5 Economic Impacts. As discussed previously, the Subject Property has been

developed for commercial purposes. The proposed Project will create short term economic
benefits associated with the construction of the improvements and long-term economic benefits
associated with the operation of the Craft Brewery on Parcel 9. The proposed Project will not have

any negative impacts on the economy.

11.6  Coastal Hazards. The Subject Property is situated within Flood Zone AE
(EL. 12/13), as shown on the State Flood Hazard Assessment map (which incorporates the data
shown on Federal Insurance Rate Map 150002-055E). The Project will meet all of the
requirements of the Flood Plain Management Ordinance of the County of Kauai, as contained in
Chapter 15, Article 1, of the Kauai County Code, 1987. The Project will have no negative impact
on flooding on or around the Subject Property. All drainage resulting from construction activities,
from road use, and from the increase in land coverage will be retained on site or directed into the
Auwai and subject to best management practices. No additional drainage will be allowed to
significantly or negatively impact surrounding properties, including the mauka taro lands.

11.7 Managing Development/Public Participation. The commercial activities

on the Subject Property are complimentary to, and consistent with, present and future coastal zone
development in this area of Kaua'i.

11.8 Beach Protection/Marine Resources. At the closest, the Subject Property is

located 1,400 feet from the Shoreline. As aresult, the Project will have no impact on any shoreline
or beach areas, or an any open space areas along the shoreline. The Project will not involve any
development within the beach or coastal area which would have any negative impact on marine or
coastal resources. The Applicant is not aware of any existing fishponds, or revetments in the

vicinity of the Subject Property.
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11.9 Value of Development. The Project involves activities with a value

greater than $500,000.00.

11.10 Compatibility With Surrounding Uses. The Subject Property is surrounded

by properties located within the SLUC Agricultural District, the SLUC Urban District, the CZO
Neighborhood Commercial District, the CZO Residential District, the CZO Agriculture District,
and the CZO Open District. Uses on the surrounding lands include commercial uses, residential
uses, transient vacation rentals, farm dwelling uses, and agricultural uses. The Subject Property is
similar in topography, character and nature with adjacent and surrounding properties, and the

Project activities are consistent with such surrounding uses.

11.11 Impacts Within SMA. The Project activities on the Subject Property will
have no significant negative impact on the SMA. The Project is and will be compatible with
existing uses in areas on or around the Subject Property. The Project will have no significant
negative impact on scenic or open space resources within the SMA. The Project will not increase
runoff or otherwise endanger the coastal ecosystem. The Project will be located in a coastal hazard
area, but will comply with all applicable flood zone requirements. The Project will have no
significant detrimental impact on recreational, historic, or economic resources. Because of its
distance from the Shoreline (1,400 feet), the Project will not have any detrimental impacts on
beach or marine resources. Approval of the Project will not result in the foreclosure of future
management options for development in the Hanalei Town area. The design, siting, and
landscaping of the Project as proposed will ensure that the proposed Project will recognize,
preserve, maintain and contribute to the characteristics of the surrounding lands (which lands are

recognized to be of particular significance or value to the general public). In particular, the Project
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will be compatible with, and will protect, the unique natural forms of, biologic systems contained
within, and aesthetic characteristic of, the SMA.

11.12 Compliance with SMA Standards. The Project activitieson the

Subject Property will fulfill the provisions of the Special Management Area Rules And
Regulations of the County of Kauai ("SMA Rules") in that:

a. The Project will have no affect on public access to publicly owned
or used beaches and recreational areas.

b. The Project will not detrimentally effect any wildlife or endangered
plant or animal species.

c. Provisions for solid and liquid waste treatment, disposition and
management will be developed in order to minimize adverse effects on the Special Management
Area.

d. Alteration to existing land forms or vegetation and the construction
of structures will cause minimum adverse effects to water resources and scenic and recreational
amenities, and will minimize danger of floods, wind damage, storm surge, landslides, erosion,
siltation, or failure in the event of earthquake.

e. The Project will not require dredging, filling, or altering any bay,
estuary, salt marsh, river mouth, slough or lagoon.

f. The Project will not reduce the size of any beach or other area
useable for public recreation.

g. The Project will not reduce or impose restrictions upon public access
to tidal and submerged lands, beaches, portions or rivers or streams within the Special

Management Area and the mean high tide line where there is no beach.
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h. “The Project will not substantialiy interfere with or detract from the
line of sight toward the sea from the State highway nearest the coast;

1. The Project will not adversely affect water quality, existing areas of
open water free of visible structures, existing and potential fisheries and fishing grounds, wildlife
habitats, or potential or existing agriculture uses of land.

j. The Project wiil not have any substantial environmental or
ecological effect, except as such adverse effect is minimized to the extent practicable and clearly
outweighed by public health, safety, or compelling public interests.

k. The Project is consistent with the objectives, policies, and guidelines
set forth in HRS Chapter 205A and Sections 3.0 and 4.0 of the SMA Rules.

L. The Project is consistent with permitted uses in the SLUC Urban
District, the Kaua'i General Plan, the North Shore Development Plan, and the CZO.

 SECTION 12. USE PERMIT, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT USE PERMIT, AND ZONING
PERMIT CONSIDERATIONS.

12.1 Use Permit/Project Development Use Permit. The Applicant is applying
for: an amendment to the Use Permit contained in the Master Permit and the Project Development
Use Permit contained in the 2006 Permit for the Lot 17 improvements; and a new Use Permit and
Project Development Use Permit for the Parcel 9 improvements.

12.2  Compatibility With Surrounding Uses. The Subject Property is surrounded

by parcels that are located within the SLUC Agricultural District, the SLUC Urban District, the
CZO Neighborhood Commercial District, the CZO Residential District, the CZO Agriculture
District, and the CZO Open District. Uses on adjacent parcels include transient vacation rental

uses, farm dwellings, agricultural uses, commercial uses, and residential uses. The Applicant's
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operation on the Subject Property, if allowed, is not expected to cause problems for its neighbors
and, to that extent, is compatible.

12.3  Compliance with Use Permit Standards. The proposed Project activities on

the Subject Property are in compliance with the standards for Use Permits as contained in CZO

Section 8-3.2, in that the Project will be:

a. A compatible use. The Project is a use allowed with a Use Permit and

therefore is a consistent use provided for in the CZO as long as impacts to the area are mitigated. It
will be compatible and similar to other commercial uses in the area.

b. Not detrimental to health of persons residing or working in

the neighborhood. The Project will not be detrimental to the health of persons residing and working

in the neighborhood given the types of surrounding commercial, residential, resort-residential, and
agricultural activities ("Surrounding Activities") in the area.

c. Not detrimental to safety of persons residing or working in

the neighborhood. The Project will not have any substantial impacts on the environment, including

noise generation, pollution, the discharge of odors, the discharge of fluid or gaseous materials, or
visual impacts ("Environmental Impacts") that will be detrimental to the safety of persons residing
and working in the neighborhood. The Project will be similar to and compatible with the types of
Surrounding Activities in the area.

d. Not detrimental to peace of persons residing or working in

the neighborhood. The Project will not create any Environmental Impacts that will be detrimental to

the safety of persons residing and working in the neighborhood.
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e. Not detrimental to morals of persons residing or working in

the neighborhood. The Project will not involve activities that will be detrimental to the morals of

persons residing and working in the neighborhood.

f. Not detrimental to comfort and general welfare of persons residing or

working in the neighborhood. The Project will not create any Environmental Impacts that will be

detrimental to the general welfare of persons residing and working in the neighborhood. It will be
similar to Surrounding Activities and only operate during reasonable hours.

g. Not detrimental or injurious to property or improvements in

the neighborhood. The Project will not create any Environmental Impacts that will be detrimental to
the health of persons residing and working in the neighborhood.

h. Not detrimental to the general welfare of the community. The Project

will not create any Environmental Impacts that will be detrimental to the general welfare of the
community.

1. Not a cause of substantial harmful environmental consequences to the

Subiject Property, or to other lands or waters. The Project will not generate Environmental Impacts

or negative by-products which would affect the surrounding area. All waste materials generated by
the brewing process will be removed from Parcel 9.

j Not inconsistent with the intent of the CZO. As discussed herein, the

Project activities are compatible with uses and structures within the CZO Neighborhood Commercial
District and CZO Open District.

k. Not inconsistent with the General Plan. As discussed herein, the

Project activities will be consistent with the Goals, Policies, and Objectives & Actions (Sectors) of

the Kauai General Plan.
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SECTION 13. HRS CHAPTER 343 (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENTS)
CONSIDERATIONS.

13.1 HRS Chapter 343. The Project is not subject to the provisions of

Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 343. HRS Chapter 343 requires the preparation of an
Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement for certain activities as
specified in HRS Section 343-5. The proposed Project does not fall within such specified

activities, in that the Project does not:

a. Propose the use of state or county lands or the use of state or county

funds;

b. Propose any use within any land classified as conservation district

by the State Land Use Commission under HRS Chapter 205;

c. Propose any use within the shoreline area as defined in HRS

Section 205A-41;

d. Propose any use within any historic site as designated in the
National Register or Hawaii Register as provided for in the Historic Preservation Act of 1966,

Public Law 89-665, or HRS Chapter 6E;

e. Propose any use within the Waikiki area of Oahu, the boundaries of
which are delineated in the land use ordinance as amended, establishing the "Waikiki Special

District";

f. Propose any amendments to existing county general plans where

such amendment would result in designations other than agriculture, conservation, or preservation; -
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g. Propose any reclassification of any land classified as conservation

district by the State land Use Commission under HRS Chapter 205;

h. Propose the construction of new, or the expansion or modification

of existing, helicopter facilities within the state; or

1. Propose the construction of a wastewater treatment unit, waste-to-

energy facility, oil refinery, or power generating facility (which use petroleum based fuels).

SECTION 14. NATIVE HAWAIAN ISSUES.

14.1 Impacts on Traditional or Cultural Practices. As discussed in the

Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina Analysis (September 2019) prepared by Exploration Associates Ltd.
attached hereto as Exhibit "F-10", the Project will have no impact on any known traditional or
customary practices of native Hawaiians.

a. There are no known traditional or customary practices of native
Hawaiians that are presently occurring within the Subject Property.

b. There are no special gathering practices taking place within any
portion of the Subject Property.

C. The Project will not detrimentally affect: access to the Auwai or any
streams; access to the shoreline or other adjacent shoreline areas; or gathering along or in the
Auwai, any streams, the shoreline or the ocean.

d. There are no known religious practices taking place within the

Subject Property.
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e. Other than the Hanalei School Building, the Lo'i Field, and the
Auwai, there are no known cultural or historic sites or resources located within thé
Subject Property.

f. There are no known burials within the Subject Property.

SECTION 15. COMMUNITY CONTACTS.
15.1 Contact with Community Groups. The Applicant will provide the

Hanalei/Haena Community Association with this Application.

SECTION 16. CONCLUSION.

The Applicant respectfully requests that the Planning Commission:

1. Find that the Project will not have any substantial environmental or
ecological effect, except as such adverse effect is minimized to the extent practicable and clearly
outweighed by public health, safety, or compelling public interest.

2. Find that the Project is consistent with the objectives, policies, and
guidelines set forth in Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 205A and Sections 3.0 and 4.0 of the
SMA Rules.

3. Find that the Project is consistent with permitted uses in the SLUC Urban
District, the Kauai General Plan, the North Shore Development Plan, and the CZO.

4. Find that the Project will be in compliance with the provisions of
HRS Chapter 6E and Title 13, Subtitle 13, Chapter 284 of the Hawaii Administrative Rules.

5. Find that the Project will be consistent with the provisions of

HRS Sections 1-1 and 7-1 and Article 12, Section 7 of the Hawaii State Constitution.
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6. Find that the Applicant has satisfied the minimum requirements of

Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina v. Land Use Commission to protect customary and traditional native

Hawaiian rights.

7. Find that the Project satisfies and complies with the CZO Use Permit, Project
Development Use Permit, and Class IV Zoning Permit requirements.

8. Approve the Application for the Project on the Subject Property as
described herein, subject to such reasonable conditions as the Planning Commission shall impose.

DATED: Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii, March 16, 2020.

BELLES GRAHAM LLP

By
T~ MAX W. J. GRAHAM; JR.

IAN K. JUNG
Attorneys for Applicant,
HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC., a Hawaii
corporation, and NA PALI BREWING
COMPANY L.L.C., a Hawaii limited
liability company

In The Matter Of The Application Of HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC., a Hawaii corporation, and
NA PALI BREWING COMPANY L.L.C., a Hawaii limited liability company, for a Special Management Area Use
Permit, Use Permit, Project Development Use Permit, and Class IV Zoning Permit, and to amend Special Management
Area Use Permit SMA(U)-88-4, Use Permit U-88-25, Variance Permit V-88-6, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-88-
30, and Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2006-1, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2006-1, and
Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2006-1, concerning property located at Hanalei, Halale'a, Kauai, Hawaii, identified by
Kauai Tax Map Key Nos. (4) 5-5-009:008 and 009; APPLICATION AND MOTION TO AMEND MASTER
PERMIT AND 2006 PERMIT; EXHIBITS "A" - "F"
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EXHIBIT LIST
(HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC. AND NA PALI BREWING COMPANY L.L.C.)

EXHIBIT
A. AUTHORIZATION
AUTNOTIZALION ..oovvevietiere e ereeee et sbe e ese st e st e sseses e s e sae s s be b esa s e s s ba bt esnanesreansees A
B. TITLE
Certificate Of TItle.....oviiiiieieieeere ettt s B-1
DEEA oottt s e e e e R s e st an et e e nn e B-2
C. MAPS
LOCAION MAP ...cviieeereerierrenecetetree et be e a et C-1
Tax Map (5-5-09).ceeieeiieerieitercictc e C-2
Ahupua'a Boundary Map ........cccccuemeriiiniimniiieieeene et C3
Land Use District Boundary Map .......c.ccccevceneeinniinnininieiniierenie et C-4
General Plan Map .....ccoeveriirieeeicenineectiiieie et s C-5
CZO MAP c.overteeerireirieneesteietree sttt ss st r e s as bbb s bbb st st e s nene C-6
NSDP UDPAALE MAP «.vvvveeeeenireencerieseresirenesesisesiissesssssseseesassss s s ssssssasssssssseseasesescaes C-7
SIMA MAED....c.eoterereiririerencteseesese et ses sttt s bt n s bbb b e b e s st s s s st e st n s C-8
Heritage RESOUICES Map ....c..ccvvieeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinie ettt e C-9
Sea Level RiSE MAD ..c.covvvieeirieeneiniiiicieiincnns et C-10
Flood Hazard ASSeSSMENt Map ......c.ccvvveeirieemnmnrinicniiniiiicnnieste s stsssssssneseneenes C-11
D. PERMITS/COUNTY APPROVALS
MaASEET PEIMIL.....vevveeieiiieieiereeree ettt sttt era s sreers s st a e e a s b e sba e s s D-1
2006 AMENAMENL .....veieeereierrerreereererereetestetesteeessse e ssssbessetesbs s s esaesas s ssbassesssanes D-2
2006 PEIMIL......veveeviirereeieeerieereeeeteste st eessestssessesete e srenesaoss s bssssaesbbebsebsebesnensessansasens D-3
Index of Permit Conditions.........cveveeeerereereererieencniinriseiieiesissrensesessesses e ensasees D-4
E. PLANS
Craft Brewery Site Plan ........cccccovvvrvcniniiniiiiiitiicnee s E-1
Craft Brewery F1oor Plan........ccccoccoveienniiniiniiiniiniinititecress e E-2
HCC St PIAN....cviiviieeieeeeiee ettt sitsvseestsacsee et rsas bt sa s esesas b s b e bans s s snnens E-3
F. REPORTS
Archaeological RepOrt ........cccoveeriiiiiiiiiiiiiiitcc e F-1
SHPD Approval Letter (July 29, 1988) ..o F-2
SHPD Approval Letter (September 8, 1988)....c..coviiriirn F-3
SHPD Approval Letter (June 16, 1989)........ccovvimmiieiiieceee F-4
SHPD Approval Letter (September 28, 1990) ......c.ovvmivminiiiiienee F-5
SHPD Approval Letter (December 13, 1990)......ccoivmimimiiniiiiiniiceeee F-6
SHPD Approval Letter (October 12, 1994) ... F-7
SHPD Approval Letter (October 25, 1994) .......coooiiriiniinininiennieeienecsnnens F-8
SHPD Approval Letter (August 9, 2005) ...c.cooviiminiiiiiiiencee e F-9
Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina Analysis (September 2019)......c.cocvviiviinininiiinininnieinieee, F-10
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EXHIBIT "A"



AUTHORIZATION

I  OWNER.

Name: HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC.,
a Hawaii corporation

Address: ¢/o Mr. Gaylord Wilcox
P. O. Box 10150
Honolulu, Hawaii 96816

Telephone: (808) 721-7848

Email: ' gaylord@gwilcox.com

1I. AUTHORIZED AGENT.

Name: Max W. J. Graham, Jr., Esq.
’ Jan K. Jung, Esq.
Address: Belles Graham LLP

4334 Rice Street, Suite 202
Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766

Telephone: (808) 246-6962
Facsimile: (808) 245-3277
Email: mweg@kauai-law.com

iki@kauai-law.com

III.  PROPERTY.

Lot 17, Map 2, Land Court Application No. 1160
Hanalei, Kauai, Hawaii
Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-5-009:008

Royal Patent 6461, Land Commission Award No. 597

Hanalei, Kauai, Hawaii
Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 5-5-009:009
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The: Owner hiereby anithotizes the Authorized Ageitt to act oy the Owner's behalf andito

file. and’ process ony the: Owner's. betialf any and il o ons niecessary 1o obtain
but- hot Timited to, the

_ following:

ding permits, use permits;
k detérminations, and
ed: by any-department, agency, board of

% althof the State of Hawaii:

3. Permits:and approvals issied by the Department:of Transportation of the Staté of
Hawail. ~ -

 DATED: 7‘/ *8 /(4 |

OWNER;

‘a Hawati-corporation:

{WIDOCSASVTIANOLS 1948 NICK )
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Aylo-d Wilcex

297,116 328,785
1631899

05/04/1989 /s/ Patricia Kimura

REGISTERED OWNER

~-HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC.-, a Hawali coxporation
111 Royal Circle, Honolulu, Hawaii 96816

#%* 1co cons lots 15 & 16 into lots 148 & 149 12~-8=05 #¥¥*¥

LAND
gituate at Hanalel, Kaual

1L0TS: 16, .116 acre and
17, 3.985 acres, Map 2,

Land Court Application 1160 of Ethel Kulamanu Wilcox

NC E
Lot/Int. (%) _Document# Class In Favor Of / Te

R/W in favor of Kauai County-Hanalei
Waterworks' pipeline, Lot 16 CANCELLED
BY DOC 1894732...uacnvacnes [PK]

Perpetual covenants in Doc 1070539
[ '

105780 LCO Easement 12, Lot 16, Map 24..10.4.4[SF)

EXHIBIT "B-1"




E BRANCES (continued

Lot/Int.(%) _Document# _Class.

493379

494455
1609436
1631900
1697265
1697266
1701534
1701535
1894733
1914719
1921056
1943843
1943844

12080686

2106262

2158697

2280213

2550567

2552145
16

16 112180
17 112180

Rev. 06/15/1999

GRANT
GRANT
MIG
CONSENT
LEASE
MTG
LEASE
MTG
GRANT
MIG

REL
ESTOPPEL
ESTOPPEL

GRANT

REL
REL
A/M
MIG
REL

LCO
LCO

No. 328,785

In Favor Of / Terms

Eagle County Development Corporation,
Lot 16

Lihue Plantation Company, Limited,

Lot 16

HonFed Bank, A Federal Savings Bank
Deed 1631899%..ccaerasonnrass vessess [PK]
Kanai Corp, Space 3, Bldg A, of Hanalei
Center Phase 1, exp 12/01/94....... [PK]
Bank of Hawalli, Lease 1697266,.-..4 [PK]
Big Tim's Inc., Space 5, Bldg A of
Hanalei Center, exp 2/19/95 with option

to extend.scessorsnvrnoasorraene ... [PK]
Bank of Hawail, Lease 1701534;

Consent 1701536, ccacevrensaccsancns [PK]
County of Kauai, Dept of Water, Lot 16,
for waterpipeline....vaee-ves veeeos [PR]
GECC Financial Corporation......... [HE]
Amended by Doc 2413357 40even-neer.[RD]
Mtg 1609436 ceurservsccraveocs ve..e [PK]

Lessee certify that Lease 1701534 is
effective & Mtg 1914719 is entitled to
all benefits thereon.esessscorsanr- [WC)
Lessee certify that Lease 1697265 is
effective & Mtg 1914719 is entitled to
all benefits thereON.c.:vsserencscs [WC]
County of Kaual, Dept of Water,
Fasements 14, 15, 16 & 17, Map 25.. [WC]

Mtg 1701535...... cissasvaressneaaan {cs}
Mtg 1697266..sessacnranee feeevennve [NG]
GE Capital Hawail, Inc, Mt 1914719[NG]
Bank of Hawaid,. eevaeremnvavennnnee [HE]
Mtg 1914719........ hevesavsrens ++.[SDJ}

Right of way in favor of owners in Deed
in Liber 9, Pg 271; & Princeville
Plantation Company, Lot 16

Fasement 14, Map 25, for water facility
feerevanaans esvesnsasvssansesenens RE]
Fasements 15, 16 & 17, Map 25,

for water facllity.....evs--- vesses[HE]
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R-1046 STATE OF HAWAI
BUREAU QOF CONVEYANCES
RECGORD

MAR 30, 2007 10:00 AM
Doc No(s) 2007-0§8294

-

Ist CARL T. WATANABE
REGISTRAR OF CONVEYANCES

CTax (20): $1670.00

i

20

m

LAND COURT SYSTEM ¢} REGULAR SYSTEM
Return By  Mail () Pickup (X) To:

Damon Key Leong Kupchak Hastert (KRK)

1600 Pauahi Tower, 1001 Bishop Street

Honolulu, Hawali 96813 (This document contains 4 _pages)
TELEPHONE: 531-8031 .

5-5105 A Kuhio Highway
Hanalei, HI 96714
TMK: (4) 5-5-9-9

LIMITED WARRANTY DEED
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY DEED, made this 30" day of March, 2007, by and
between GAYLORD & CAROL WILCOX FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Hawaii limitad
partnership, whose address is 111 Royal Circle, Honolulu, Hawaii 96816, hereinafter called

“Grantor”, and HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC., a Hawali corporation, whose address is 111 Royal
Circle, Honolulu, Hawaii 96816, hereinafter called "Grantee,”

WITNESSETH:

That Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00), and
other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant,
bargain, sell, and convey, unto Grantee, as tenant i severalty, its successors and assigus, absolutely
and in fee simple, all of the property described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and made a part
hereof;,

: AND the reversions, remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof and all of the estate,
right, title and interest of Grantor, both at law and in equity, ther¢in and thereto;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same forever, together with all buildings,

improvements, hereditaments, tenements, rights, casements, privileges and appurtenances thereunto
belonging or appertainiug or held and enjoyed therewith, unto Grantee, as aforesaid;

EXHIBIT "‘B-2"



AND Grantor, in consideration of the premises, does hereby covenant and agree to
and with Grantee that the real property herein described is free and clear of and from all liens and
encumbrances made or suffered by Grantor, except for the lien of real property taxes not yet by law
required to be paid, and except as may be specifically set forth herein; that Grantor has good right
to sell and convey said property, as aforesaid; and that Grantor will WARRANT AND DEFEND the
same unto Grantee against the lawful claims and demands of all persons claiming by, through or
under Grantor, except as aforesaid;

AND Grantee acknowledges that the property is being sold "AS IS", with knowledge
of the conditions disclosed by Grantor and/or discovered during inspection(s) of the property.
Grantee understands and agrees that all land and improvements (including but not limited to theroof,
walls, foundations, soils, plumbing, efectrical and mechanical systems, ete.), real property, and
personal property (if any) are sold in their existing "AS IS” condition, WITHOUT WARRANTY OR
REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.

The terms "Grantor" and "Grantee” shall include Grantor, Grantee and their respective
successors and assigns. ,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this instrument the day
and year first above written.

GAYLORD & CAROL WILCOX HANALEI COMMERCIAL INC.,
FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Hawaii corporation
a Hawaii limited partnership
Qo fodsle ()% Gourford . 6)Prn
ZGaylokd H. Wilcox Gaybord H, Wilcox
Its General Partner Its President
o= —
Caral M-Wileox—~
Its General _Partner
“Qrantor”

As instucted, Damon Key teong Kupchak Mastert
preparedthis document withouk » curvent titte search and
has nok ctherwise verified thie.




STATE OF HAWAT )
) 88,
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU )

On this / Qé day of M (J\) , 2007, before me personally appeared
GAYLORD H. WILCOX and CAROL M. WILCOX, to me persanally known, who, being by me

duly sworn (or affirmed), did say that such persons executed the foregoing instrument, as the free
act and deed of such persons, and if applicable in the capacity shown, having been duly authorized
to execute such instrument in such capacity.

%/W
Namei__ Corolin & imashit

Notary Public, State of Hawaii
My commission cxpires:_d)’ﬁ / () 7

STATE OF HAWAII )
) S8,
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU )

On this / % day of Zq /A CA) _, 2007, before me personally appeared
GAYLORD H. WILCOX, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn (or affirmed), did
say that such person executed the foregoing instrument as the free act and deed of such person, and
if applicable in the capacity shown, having been duly anthorized to execute such instrument in such
capacity.

£S e f 14

Notary Public, State of Ha'
My commission expires: déc/ ¢ 7




EXHIBIT “A"
(Page 1 of 1)

All of that certain parcel of land (portion of the land described in and covered by
Royal Patent Grant Number 6461, Land Commission Award Number 597 to T. C. B, Rooke) situate,
lying and being at Hanalei, Island and County of Kauai, State of Hawaii, bearing Tax Key
designation 5-5-09-09 (4), and containing an area of 7,822 square feet, or thereabouts.

BEING a portion of the property conveyed to Grantor herein by the Trustee’s Limited
Warranty Deed dated July 31, 2001, recorded in the Bureau of Conveyances of the State of Hawaii
as Document No. 2001-158699.

SUBJECT, HOWEVER, to the following:

1. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and metallic mines.

2. Any and all recorded and unrecorded leases,

3. Any and all encumbrances, easements, restrictions, and reservations presently
of record.
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Figure 5-7 North Shore Land
Use Map
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Hawaii SMA Locator
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Figure 5-14 North Shore Heritage Resource Map
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